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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON DEPARTMENT OF
DEFENSE DEPENDENTS’ SCHOOLS

WEDNESDAY, JULY 30, 1986

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE oN ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY,
AND VocaTioNAL EpucaTion,
CoMMITTEE oN EnticaTioN AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcomuiittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 a.m., in room
2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Augustus F. Hawkins
(chairmar of the subcommittee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Hawkins, Ford, Kildee, and
Goodling.

Staff present: Jack F. Jennings, Nancy Kober, Kris Gilbert, Bev-
erly Griffin, and Andrew Hartman

Chairman Hawkins. The Subcommittee on Elementary, Second-
ary, and Vocational Education is cailed to order.

This morning, the subcommittee is conducting an oversight hear-
ing on the Department of Defense Dependents’ gchools.

I will forego a statement, inasmuch as wa have been delayed in
the hearing this morning, and we do want % accommodate the wit-
nesses before some additional votes occur in the House and prevent
us from proceeding as diligently as we would otherwise.

The Chair of the subcommittee would like, at this time, to yield
the chair to the chairman of the Post Office and Civil Service Com-
mittee, which has some jurisdiction in this area.

But before doing so, may I merely use a few minutes to pay my
tribute to William Ford of Michigan.

Earlier in our careers, when we had more time and fewer respon-
sibilities, we travelled to meany places in order to look at what was
happening the Defense Dependents’ Schools.

I think a tremendous amount of the enthusiasm that went into
those travels and the results obtained are due primarily to Mr.
Fr.d, who took this as a primary mission of his.

I was going along because I was involved in trade and employ-
ment activities.

So, it is, however, a hearing long overdue.

We uncerstand that in the reorganization of the system that
some changes will be made.

We are also obvious of the fact that some budget 2uts have been
made, which may have an adverse impact on the quality of educa-
tion. And because of these and other matters, amfll because of our
sincere desire that those who are required by public service over-
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seas, will not forego the opportunity of having their children edu-
cated as well as any children that we have.

For that reason, it’s a privilege for me to yield the gavel at this
time and have Mr. Ford preside over these hearings as the individ-
ual who knows most about the subject than, I think, any other
Member of Congress.

Mr. Ford, would you take the chair, please?

Mr. Forp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I want to thank you for calling this hearing on rather short
nctice in the middle of the busiest time of this Congress. And I
know the tremendous demands your time on as the chairman of
this committee. It seems like I meet you coming and going, wherev-
er I move around the Hill, these days.

Our hearing, today, will focus on the operation of the Depart-
ment of Defense Dependents’ Schools, and specifically on whether
or rot the changes that are being made within the Department of
Defense are consistent with Public Law 95-561, which established
the Defense Dependents’ Education System.

It should be recalled that although we have had American
schools in foreign countries for the purpose of educating the chil-
dren of our military stationed in those countries since 1946, it was
not until the committee acted in 1978, by the passage of Public
{..aw 95-561, that the schools were actually authorized any place in
aw,

The existence of the schools had always been dependent upon a
little item in the defense appropriations bill every year that said,
in addition to everything else, here’s some money to run a school
systzm. It was literally that loose a structure for many years.

When this committee started to look at the schocls in 1965 and
1966, we visited them all around the world. We found that the best
thing you could say about the way they were organized was that
they weren’t organized. They were operating differently in the
Army, the Navy, and the Air Force.

And, as they frequently do, the Army, Navy, and the Air Force
were fiercely proud that they were different from one another in
the way they were running schools, as if there was an Army way to
educate a child, a Navy v-ay to educate a child, and an Air Force
way.

ert of what was involved in subsequent years was trzing to
break down that isolation and get people to understand that the
primary mission of these schools was the education of cependent
children, and not the gratification of Americans in exile who en-
joyed sitting on the equivalent of a school board and playing home
town school board member.

Some of you, particularly, Tony, will remnember that wo’ve had
instances oty that kind over the years.

This school system, if it were brought together in the country,
would be the ninth largest schocl system in the United States, with
150,000 students.

We are, of course, constrained by the rules of the House to main-
tamn a consistent oversight over legislation after we pass it. The
purpose of this hearing is to simply inquire into whether or rot the
contemplated organization of the management of the schools is con-
sistent with the intent of that legislation.




Our first witness.

Did you want to say anything, Bill?

[No response.]

Mr. Forp. Our first witness, today, is Barbara Pope, Deputy As-
sistant Secretary of Defense for Family Support, Education, and
Safety, of the U.S. Department of Defense.

Without objection, the prepared statement submitted by Mrs.
Pope will be included in full at this point in the record.

Prepared statvment of Barbara Pope follows:]

~z
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF BaRBaRA S. POPE, DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DE-
FENSE FOR FamiLy Suppor:, EDUCATION, anp Sarery, U.S. DeparTMENT OF DE-
FENSE

Mr. Chairman:

As the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for Family
Support, Education and Safety, 1 am pleased to appear before you
today to discuss Dependents' Education Policy 1in the Department
of Dafense. I appreciate the efforts of this committee, and you,
Mr. Chairman, 1in par.icular, for your support of and assistance
to higt quality education for the children of our military
members.

Education for military members and their dependents 1s of
great 1mporcaice to this Administration. We i1ecognize not only
the value of a quality education to the individual, but also to
the military community and ultimately to the security of the
nation,

Today I would like to discuss with you the organization
which I head, especially as it relates to management of the
Department of Defense Dependents Schools (DoDDS). I report
direct)y t¢ the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Force Management
and Personnel). Directors representing these various concerns
report directly to me. (Please see the organization chart
attached at the end of my testimony for a more detailed

description.) My office was established to provide a coherent

and unified reporting structure for all policy 1issues relating to
family support, education and safety.

Family Support, Education and Safety issues are the "mrke or

break issucs" for our career military members. Often a member's

decision to remain in the military 18 based on theece qua .ty of
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life 18sues as they 1mpacCt not only the service member, but the
mempber’'s family. Because each affects the other in many inter-
related ways, these 1ssues need to be considered collectively,
not sepasately. The current organization does this.

In addition to the DoDDS office, my organization 1n;ludes a
Dependents Schools Policy Office. This office was establishied
specifically to provide assistance with respect to dependents
education 1n the United States and 1ts territories -- Sectioh 6
Schools. It also provides technical assistance wi.h respect to
my administrative and manugement responsibilities for the over-
seas dependents schools system (DoDDS). Finally, 1t 1s the focal
point and the office responsible for coord:nating all i1ssuee 1n
my deputatc.

Under this organizational structure, all operational
responsibilit.es still i1emain with the Director, DoDDS. It also
ensures that DoDDS remains as one of the most i1mportant elements
in the quality of life for our military members. Both the
Assistant Secretary and I are nommitted to the vitality of the
DoDDS system.

I am a streng advocate of our overseas dependents schools
system and of the o.,ganizatioOha. structure of which 1t 1s a part.
This structure 1s fully consistent with the requirements and
objectives of the original Defense Dependents' Education Act of
1978, p.L. 95-561. The present structure also offers a coherent
and viable framework 1h which problematiC 1ssues can be addressed
and i1mportant family and quality of life i1ssues can be
rdenti1fied, nurtured and ultimately flourish.

I would be pleasecd to address your guestions.
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Mr. Forp. And you may proceed to comment on it, add to it, sup-
plement it, or highlight it in any way that you feel most comforta-
bie.

STATEMENT OF BARBARA S. POPE, DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY OF DEFENSE FOR FAMILY SUPPORT, EDUCATION, AND
SAFETY, US. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Ms. Poek. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I believe you've also received the statement from the Assistant
Secretary. And I would like to request that it also be submitted for
the record.

Mr. Forp. Yes.

We have a statement from Mr. Chapman B. Cox, Assistant Secre-
tary of Defense [Force Management and Personnel].

And, without objection, thac will be inserted in the record imme-
diately following the testimor:y of Mrs. Pope.

You may proceed

Ms. Popk. Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to appear before you today to dis-
cuss Dependents’ Education Policy in the Department of Defense.

Since June, I have been the Deputy Assistant Secretary of De-
fense for Family Support, Education, and Safety.

I appreciate the efforts of this committee and you, Mr. Chair-
man, in particular, for your support of and assistance tv high qual-
ity education for the children of our military members.

Education for military members and their dependents is of great
importance to this administration. We recognize not only the value
of a quality education to the individual, but also the military com-
munity and, ultimately, to the security of the nation.

Today, I would like to discuss with you the organization which I
head, especially as it relates to management of the Department of
Defense Dependents’ Schools.

{ report directly te the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Force
Management and Personnel.

Directors representing these various concerns report directly to
me. My organizational chart is attached at the end of my state-
ment.

My office was established to provide a coherent and unified re-
porting structure for all policy issues relating to family support,
education, and sarety.

Family support, education, and safety issues are the make-or-
break-issues for our career military members. Often, a member’s
decision to remain in the military is based on these quality of life
issues a3 they impact not only the service member, but also the
member's family.

Because each affects the other in many interrelated ways, these
issues need to be considered collectively, not separately. The cur-
rent organization does this.

In addition to the DODDS office, iny organization includes a De-
pendents Schools Policy Office. This office was established specifi-
cally to provide assistance with respect to dependents’ education in
the United States and its territories—section six schools.

1i
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It also provides technical assistance with resgect to my adminis-
trative and management responsibilities for the overseas depend-
ents’ schools system.

Finally, it is the focal point and the office responsible for coordi-
nating all issues in my deputate.

Under this organizational structure, all operational responsibil-
ities for DODDS still remains with the Director of DODDS. It also
ensures that DODDS remains as one of the most important ele-
ments in the quality of life issues for our military members.

Both the Assistant Secretary and I are committed to the vitality
of the DODDS system.

I am a strong advocate of our overseas dependents’ schools
system and of the orgarizetional structure of which it is a part.
This structure is fully consistent with ‘he requirements and objec-
tives of the original Defense Dependents’ Education Act of 1978,
Public Law 95-561.

The present structure also offers a coherent and viable frame-
work in which problematic issues can be addressed and important
family and quality of life issues can be identified, nurtured, and ul-
timately flourish.

I would be pleased to answer your questions.
[Prepared statement of Chapman Cox follows:]
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PREPARED STATENMENT OF CHAPMAN B CoX, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE
TORCE MANAGEMENT AND PERSONNEL)

tr ORC
Mr. Chairmar:

It 15 a pleasure to have the opportuhity to explain the
organizational struccure of the Department of Defense relating to
zanagement of the Department of Defense Dependent Schools (DoDDS).
I know that this Committee 1S famili:ar with this overseas school
system and with 1ts many accomplishments., and I appreciate your
support 1n this regard.

Currently my office, Force Management and Personne., 1s
ccmprised of six deputates, 22 directorates and nuderous
committees. boards. and field activities. I am responsible for a
$100 billion budget and over 2 million military and 1.1 million
civilian employees.

I have deputies reporting directly to me who are responsible
for the daily oversight of the hundreds of 1ssues that come under
@y purview. All management decisions, goals and initiatives are
at my direction; and all decisions are ultimately ny
responsibility. My deputies act as my executive agents.

My office reorganization began one year ago. At that time, a
new Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense was appointed with
responsibility for the policy issues of DoDDS. As a result of my
concern for the support of all quality of life 1ssues, aspecially
education, I expanded the duties of this new DASD. I believe
that this new deputate elevates all family and quality of lize
1ssues, especially education, strongly supported by the military
services. Although 1ts budget 15 small =- $1 billion -- and its

people are few -- fewer than 20,000 -- the new deputate 1. on par

13
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with my much larger military personnel and civilian personnel
deputates. Because of the 1mportance of the 1ssues under the new
DASD's responsibility, I felt that equal s.anding was necessary.

The new DASD was createa to addr2ss and coordinate all policy
natters and 1ssues pertaining to family support education and
safety. To accomplish this objective, the Military Family
Resource Centers in the ASD for Health Affairs, the Office for
Family Policy with the DASD for Military Manpower and Personne.
Policy, the dependents education programs (DoDDf ».a Section 6
Schools) within the DASD for cducation, and the Office for Safety
policy in the DASD for Equal Opportumty, were relocated to the

w office.

It 1s i1mportant to note that al. operational responsibilities
1n the area of overseas dependent education are still delegated
to the Director, DoDP%. 1In addition to these functions, however,
1 established a hew Dependents Schools Policy Directorate under
the DASD (FSE&S). This directorate has been tasked to carry out
by responsibilities relating to Section é schools, and to providr
policy coordination and technical assistance to the DASD (FSE&S)
and, 1h turn, me with respect to dependents education overseas.

As background: In 1981, the Director, DoDDS, reported to a
Depity Assistant Secretary of Defense who reported directly to
the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Manpower, Reserve Affairs and
Logistirs), now titled the Assistant Secretary of Defense for

Force Management and Personnel. From 1983-1985, the Director.

14
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Douws, cepofted BT ASsi3tant Secievary.  cOw, tne
Director, DoDDS, reports again to a Deputy Assistant Secretary,
the DASD (FSE&S).

I would ask that the opinion of the Department of Degénse
General Counsel on the authority of the DASD (FSE&S) over DoDDS
be inserted for the record.

I helieve that including DoDDS 1in the new FSE&S deputate 18
beneficial to DoDDS students, teachers and administrators. It
znsures that the DoD military ard civilian coapunity 13 afforded
an opportunity to voice concerns outside of the normal DoLDS
organizational channels. It also elevates DoDDS and ensures that
DoDDS 18 represented as the most important family 1ssue. Since
this new organization took place, 1 have received positive
feedback from military menbers, parents, students and educators.

In closing, I would like to reiterate Ry strong support of
DoDDS and my respect for 1ts many acccmplishments. I believe the
quality of education for our dependent cr.ldren 13 enhanced as a
result of this new organization. I believe that DoDDS has been
given higher visibility and equal standing with other quality of
life 18sues to ensure the highest possible attention by nmyself
and the Secretary of Defense to DoDDS i1ssues and concerns.

1 appreciate your interest in and support of the Department's
school systems and would be pleased to answer any questions you

may have.

Q 1()
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Mr. Forp. What happened to the previous organizational struc-
ture where the Director of DODDS reported directly to the Assist-
ant Secretary for Manpower, Reserve Affairs and Logistics?

Ms. Popk. I can’t address what happened before I was here.

The organization, the current organization, began a year ago.

Mr. ForD. But do you know how the DOD Schools got out from
under that secretarial position?

Ms. PorE. No, sir.

Mr. Forp. Does that secretarial position still exist?

Ms. PorE. It's now the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Force
Management and Personnel.

Mr. Forp. That’s what was previously called the Assistant Secre-
tary for Manpower, Reserve Affairs and Logistics?

Ms. Pork. Yes, sir.

Mr. Forb. All right.

Could vou comment on the new organizational structure with re-
spect to the requirements of Public Law 95-561 in section 1403,
which establishes the office?

Are you satisfied that the new way in which you have structured
this office, as a parallel office to these other functions under you,
meets the intent of the statute?

Ms. PopE. Yes, sir, I do. I refer you also to the DOD General
Counsel opinion of June 20th that looks at the statute, and that it
is in compliance with the intent of Public Law.

Mr. Forp. May I have a copy of that?

Ms. Pope. The office was established to further support the
DODDS system.

Mr. Forp. I think somebody has submitted a copy of the Coun-
sel’s opinion dated June 20th.

Ms. Pop:. Yes, sir.

Mr. Forp. That’s the one you’re referring to?

Without objection, this will be inserted in full in the record. It’s
only a page and a half.

[The information referred to follows:]

Q Jo-g7. '
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GENERAL COUNSEL OF THE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

WASHINGTON D C 20301

W June 20, 1986
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MEMORANDUM POR THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE (FORCE
. MANAGEMZNT AND PERSONNEL)

SUBJECT: Management of the DoD Dependents Schools (DoDDS)

You have reguested this office's opinion on the authority of
the Sucretary of Defense and the Assistant Secretary of Defense
(Forc: Management and Personnel) to manage DoDDS. I conclude, as
a mattor of law, that the Secretary and the Assistant Secretary
exercise authority, direction, and control over DoDDS in all
respects. Because you have delegated those powers to the Deputy
Asgistant Secretary of Defense (Family Support, BEducation and
Safety), she also exewcises authority, direction, and control
over DoDDS in all respects.

DoDDS is an element of the Department of Defense. 20 U.S.C.
§ 922(a) (1982); DoD Directive 1342.6, DoDDS, therefore, is
under "the authority, direction, and control® of the Secretary of
Defense. 10 U.S.C. § 133(b) (198¢). The Secretary has the right
to delegate these Powers to another official of ¢tbe Department.
Id. § 133(d). The Secretary has done 80 with respect to DoDDS:
The charter of the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Force
Hanagement and Personnel) confers all of the Secretary's
authority to manage DoDDS on the Assistant Secretary. DoD
Directive 5124.2, §§ E.l.c, P.7. This includes, but is not
limited to, the establishment of educator positions. Id. encl.
ll s 16.

The Secretary has expressly empowered the Assistant
Becretary to redelegate authority, direction, and control over
DoDDS. DoD Directive 5124.2, encl. 1; DoD Directive 1342.6,

§ £.3. I understand that, acting on the Assistant Secretary's
recommendation, the Secretary has appointed Ms. Barbara Spyridon
Pope as the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense (Family
Support, Bducation and Safety) and has given her authority,
direction, and control over DoDDS, subject to guidance from the
Secretary and the Assistant Secretary. Ms. Pope, therefore,
stands in the snoes of the Secretary and the Assistant Secretary
in directing the opera.ions of and establishing policy for DoDDS.

Nothing in the Defense Dependents' Education Act of 1978,
Pub. L. No. 95-561, as amended, 20 U.S.C. §§ 921-32, is
inconsistent with the principles set forth above. Under the Act,
there is a "Director of Dependents Bducation® who is chosen by
the Secretary of Defense and reports to the Assistant Secretary
of Defense (Porce Management and Personnel). 20 U.S.C. §
922(a)(2). This provision does not deprive the Secretary or the
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Assistant Secretary of the right to designate other officials of
the Department, such as the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense
(Pamily Support, Rducation and Safety), to whom the Director muct
report and to shose directions the Director is subject. See 10
U.5.C. §§ 133, 136(a)(3). It follows, therefore, that in
exercising the functions listed in Pub. L. No. 95-561, the
Director must comply with guidance from the Secretary, the
Assistant Secretary, the Deputy Assistant Secretary, and all
others whom competeént authority has placed above the Director.
Moreover, the Director's superiors, including but not limited to
the Deputy Assistant Secretary, may personally perform those
functions or may assign them to other DoD personnel.

Q 1 ]

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



16

Mr. Forp. Now, what are your current responsibilities with re-
spect to the DODD Schools?

Ms. Popk. Basically, I was hired as a manager.

It was the Assistant Secretary’s intent that all family issues be
elevated to a deputy level, and that we further support his office’s
mission for qualily education.

And by establishing this directorate I have counteiparts in all
the services, so that DODDS’ problems can be discussed at my
counterpart level with the services, and we can further support the
mission of DODDS.

Mine is an oversight responsibility.

Mr. Forp. Now, are you the first occupant of this position?

Ms. Popk. Yes, sir. There was an acting person when the office
was established, I believe, in February of this year. But I am the
first person to occupy the job fully.

Mr. Forp. All right.

Who did the DODDS Director report to before you?

Ms. Pope. Well, to this position.

Mr. Forp. Before your position.

Ms. Pork. In the summer of last year, the Director reported to a
Deputy for Education. And prior to that, directly to the Assistant
Secretary.

Mr. Forp. There’s still a Deputy for Education?

Ms. Pope. No, sir. That was combined with this office. It’s now
Family Support, Education, and Safety.

Mr. Forp. I see.

Now, you have a new office that parallels the DODDS director-
ate, and, according to your organizational chart, is at the same
gavlgl with it. And it’s called an Office of Dependents’ Schools

olicy.

What does that office do?

Ms. Pope. With the new reorganization, the section six school
issues were taken out of the DOD Dependent’s Schools and brought
to a director level in my organization. And along with that were
the four positions that dealt with section six schools.

In addition to those four positions, there were four people there
who deal with providing the Assistant Secretary with administra-
ti}:re and technical support on all issues in my organization, so
that——

Mr. Forp. And the Office of Dependents’ Schools Policy deals
only with section six schools?

Ms. Popk. It deals with gection six schools and all force manage-
ment personnel DOD policies on all dependents’ education.

So, it’s a coordinating and reviewing office to ensure that we're
in compliance with all general DOD policy and all educational
issues.

Mr. Forp. Now, I have another chart before me. I don’t know if
you can see it from down there. It shows the Office of Dependents’
Schools Policy here, and a box below that showing the Director of
Dependents’ Schools, with this office reporting to the Office of De-
pendents’ Schools Policy, and only through this office getting to
you. Is that correct?

Ms. PopE. No, sir.

20
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hThaf; was a chart that was written before I came on board. Since
that's——

Mr. Forp. This is not the contemplated organization?

Ms. PoPE. No, sir.
anr.q Forn. Was this organization in place at any time do you

ow?

th. PorE. I don’t know. I'd be glad to find out. I can’t address
this.

Mr. Forp. Now, we’ve also been informed that the school person-
nel have been encouraged to report directly to you as a Deputy As-
sistant Secretary, rather than to the Director of the system.

Is this accurate?

Ms. PopE. No, sir. The school personnel? No, sir.

What the Assistant Secretary has done and is happening is that
we're establishing an appeal process within the school advisory
committee so that school problems are resolved at local levels, that
there is an appeal process if a decision at the regional level or the
director’s level isn’t satisfactory to the local schools, and parents,
and teachers, and that at least it has an opportunity to be respond-
ed to by the Assistant Secretary.

But no one has been directed to report to me.

Mr. Forp. Now, if I recull, Public Law 95-561 very specifically re-
quires that if you do any reorganizing of the Department of De-
fense Dependents’ Schools you’ll notify this committee.

To date, we haven’t had any notice of a reorganization. Do you
know if one is being prepared?

Ms. Pore. I don’t know, but I'll be glad to find out for you and
respond.

Mr. Forp. Well, the reason for that was so that we didn’t have to
hear on the wind that things like this were happening. If somebody
decided to move the structure around they wouid inform the com-
mittees of jurisdiction since they had the primary concern with any
reorganization that might take place.

I should tell you that there’s nothing peculiar about that. We do
that with respect to organizational charts when——

Ms. Pore. Uh-huh.

Mr. Forp [continuing]. Somebody decides to move the deck chairs
over in the Department of Education.

Almost every time there’s a change at the political appointee
level, somebody thinks the furniture would look nicer rearranged
in some fashion. And sometimes they don’t realize that there’s a
reason why a particular piece sits where it sits. They may not even
know that they’re walking into the middle of a fight that put that
piece in that particular place.

So, we woufd appreciate it if you would followup and see if there
is being prepared an explanation, an official explanation of the re-
organization, pursuant to the statutory requirement, that will be
filed with us and with the Senate committee.

Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoopLING. The first question I would ask, Ms. Pope, is exact-
ly how long have you been in this position?

Ms. Pope. Two months.

Mr. GoopLING. Two months.
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I ask that because I see some testimony that {s coming later
which I'm not swallowing. I've been in the education business too
long from every level, and I know that everybody resists change,
and educators resist change more than anybody else.

I've also been in it long eacugh to know that as when I was a
teacher it was the administrators who were at fault, and when I
was an administrator it was the school board who was at fault. I
was never at fault, of course.

But I did want to know how long you were « n the job. Therefore,
it will make it difficult, I guess, for you to respond to the questions
that I was going to ask.

In future testimony, we are told that the present DODDS struc-
ture is not working. And I'll just pick cut two reasons why they say
that. First, because there is a basic lack of trust between and
among the managerial levels and between managers and the work
force,

Then in another place it says it is not working because pulicies
are being imposed without rhyme or reason.

And I guess if you've only been there 2 months it's difficult for
you to respond to tk~se allegations. But if you have any comments
you would like to make in relationship to those, please go ahead.

Ms. PopE. I would like to on the second comment.

And part of the rationale behind this organizaticn in elevating
all family issues was to further support DODDS, to enhance it, and
bring it up sn that the Assistant Secretary was constantly awsre,
and that DODDS had the support at the OSD level on budget
issues,

The budget cuts that DODDS had to absorb last year, I don’t
know whether there was enough staff support there. But I think it
was an issue that needed to havz been dealt with in all DOD
policy, and looking at other constructive ways to deal with and
absorb the congressional cuts.

DODDS had to d=al with $29 million in congressional cuts, and
then $26 million in Gramm-Rudman cuts. And that’s a lot for any
school system to have to absorb, especially since so much of
DODDS’ budget are fixed cuts.

Now, had my present position been in place, it may have been
easier to absorb some of those cuts. And the services were certainly
willing to support and help work out that.

DODDS doesn’t have the staff to continually deal with their
counterparts or my counterparts in the service is to ask for that
support. Basically, the reason that the position was established is
to further support it and elevate it.

Mr. GoopLING. If either your instructional or your noninstruc-
tional staff feels they have a grievance, I propose that first they go
to their immediate principal.

I would suppose, if not satisfied, then they would go to the Direc-
tor.

Ms. Pope. Well, there are local school advisory committees. And
those appeals would be elevated—from the school level to the
school advisory committee, the local level, that parents, teachers,
and the principal sit on, and then be elavated to the installation,
where the military commanders sit on that committee to address
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ro%lgrgs, then to the regional level, and then to the Director of

If it’s not satisfied or answered at the Director’s level, then it
would be appealed to my office, and to Mr. Cox.

Mr. GonpLING. Besides the crisis situations that you might deal
with, do you have a regularly established meeting time where you
and the Director talk over problems?

Ms. Pope. Yes, sir. I have a weekly staff meeting where I meet
with all my dizectors. And then any additional problems that we
need to discuss are brought up at that time.

We're trying to communicate better withiin my organizations on
family issues, in that we are more proactive rather than have to
react to problems that come up.

Mr. GoopLiING. I thank you. I have no other guestions.

Mr. Forp. Mr. Hawkins.

Chairman Hawkins. Mrs. Pope, it is not clear to me as to why
the change was made. I'm not opposed to change, but not necessari-
ly supporting change just to be changing.

But what brought about the reason for the change? What is
behind it? Was it an economy? Was it based on a change of policy
ora ghange of responsibilities? Did it involve downgrading of posi-
tions?

Ms. Pore. No, sir.

Chairmar Hawkins. Just what?

Ms. PorE. As far as the change that the current Assistant Secre-
tary made and in incorporating and elevating all the family issues
into one office, it was his concern to elevate all family issues.

By creating this office, he, the Assistant Secretary, has combined
all family issues and education, even though the budget is less than
$1 billion and with staff and people of 14,000. It’s on a par with all
other military personnel and all of civilian personnel, which is a
$100 billion operation and over 3 million people.

He felt that education, quality of life issues were equally as im-
portant.

So, it was an attempt to not only elevate it, but to give further
support to those issues, to avoid duplication in efforts in the family
issv.;les, and to have the educators and the family people talking to-
gether.

There’s a whole variety of problems that in austere times, which
we’re not, and not excess budget, not excess people, that we work
together. That there was a mechanism set up for us to, on an infor-
mal basis and on an ongoing basis, to talk with my counterparts in
the services.

That goes on now. We meet periodically to discuss all family
issues, DODDS issues, section six, so that when they hear a prob-
lem that may be occurring or starting that we’re already talking
about solutions before the problems actually occur or before they
get out of control.

That’s important, too, so that the DODDS Director and the
DODDS staff can deal with the educational issues.

We can deal with how to address the budget issues and assist
them with peorle. If the dollars aren’t available, what are the al-
ternatives to doing that. There is a lot of support from the services
for the educational system, and for looking at alternative means.
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If people and dollars aren’t available, then there may be some
other resources, other alternatives.

Chairman Hawkins. That’s your idea that this elevates overseas
educction to a higher position, that it will improve the perform-
ance of tha students end the operation of the schools, and that 6 or
8 months from now, when we have had a longer experience, and
perhaps ask you to come back before this committee, you're going
to be able tec show some rather substanticl improvement?

Ms. Pork. Yes, sir.

I think it will allow the DODDS staff, the people, the Director,
those who are the educational specialists, to deal with education,
and not have to deal with the other problems that are involved in
administering a school system that is as large as the DODDS.

Mr. Hawkins. Well, I certainly hope you are right. And we’ll cer-
tainly look for those results.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Forp. Thank you very much.

A complaint has been made for some time by teachers around
the world that the DODD Schools are becoming increasingly popu-
lated with managers and decreasingly populated with classroom
teachers, that the number of teacher personnel assigned to actual
teaching duties has been reducing at the same .ime that the
number of people administering those teaching positions has been
increasing.

Have you heard about that?

Ms. PopE. Yes, sir.

Mr. Forp. Is there a reason for that? Or is it a sort of natural
phenomenon of bureaucratic growth?

Ms. PorE. I don’t have the answer to that right now.

Mr. Forp. Does it concern you?

Ms. PopE. Yes, sir, it does.

Last year there was a Department of Army manpower study con-
ducted that looked at the entire school system, at all of the above
school level positions and duties. We are in the process of respend-
ing to that, looking at those positions, and looking at how we can
better support the teachers at the school ievel.

Mr. Forp. Do you know about any action that has been taken as
a result of that study?

Ms. PopPE. No, sir. Because we're in the process of responding to
it now.

Mr. Forp. What would be the nature of the 2S response?

Ms. Pope. To make sure that the above school level positions sup-
{)ortlthe education programs and support the teachers at the school
evel.

My personal view is that, you know, DODDS is a service organi-
zation. Our delivery system is education at the field. And every po-
s}i:;ion that we have in the DODDS system should be supporting
that.

Mr. Forp. Well, there are only two places that developed any tra-
dit.on of actually operating educational programs other than the
academies and the services themselves in the Federal Government.
And that is this system and the Indian schools.
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The Indian schools were permitted to become one of the great
disgraces of this Government, not by any one administration, but
by neglect over a long period of time.

And apparently it doesn’t take very much neglect on the part of
the resporsible, quote, politicians, unquote, before a system like
this inherently starts to grow moss on its own, initiative.

It's a natural phenomenon that people down in the trenches
never know what's going on at headquarters and never quite un-
derstand why they’re being told to do what they’re doing. And you
expect a certain amount of complaining about that.

Because of our long-time contact with these schools, there are
people who do, indeed, write to us and talk to us.

Last year I visited with some of the teachers because we were
with the Post Office and Civil Service Committee worxing on an ar-
rangement for the use of the military mail system for the inde-
pendent schools that we support through the State Department.

Now, while we support those schools, we don’t actually operate
them.

Ms. Pore. Uh-huh.

Mr. Forp. The DODD Schools we do operate.

Do you see any inconsistency in having the direct operation of
the schools at the same level as these other family welfare type ac-
tivities, where you don’t actually operate a program?

For example, you wouldn’t operate the medical program that was
overseeing the health of the children would you? You'd simply
direct them toward that. And if it was a question of needing some
sort of remedial assistance iri housing, shelter, child abuse, things
of those kind, you would direct them to other operating agencies
that would actually deal directly with the problem. You don’c actu-
ally operate, for example, child nutritutior programs, or child feed-
ing, or prenatal counselling; things of that kind wouldn’t be operat-
ed by any one of these boxes shown on your chart would they?

I'm using the word operating——

Ms. PopE. Yeah.

er. Forp [continuing]. As distinguished from being the concern
of.

While it might be the concern of those shown in these boxes,
they don’t actually run the programs. The one place where you
gave an established institutional group of people shown within the

oxes——

Ms. Pore. Uh-huh.

Mr. Forp [continuing]). Who are actually performing a specific
service is the DODD Schsols.

Does it cause you any concern that you have this mixture of
types of functions at the same level?

Ms. Pore. No, sir.

You’re absolutely correct that DODDS is the only one that is ac
tually operated, the actual programs, from the office.

I have four different budgets that we deal with and that we have
responsibility over. Another one that we cperate out of my office is
the Family Advocacy Program, which is a $12 million program, last
year, t2 sponsor and work with the services on dealing with child
abuse, and spouse abuse.

So, we do have oversight for that one also.

25




22

Mr. Forp. But DODDS spends that much money in 10 days

Ms. Pore. Sure.

I don’t have a concern. I think we’re providing better support,
and that we're allowing DODDS more resources to deal with the
problems.

Mr. Forp. Well, I must say that I know that members of both
parties who work with us on the committee over the years would
be pleased with the very fact that you have, at least on paper, the
concern for the families delineated and recognized.

We had difficulty in years gone by getting the Defense Depart-
ment to understand that there was such a thing as a handicapped
child. They couldn’t believe that on-active-duty personnel could
have children that were just like other people’s children. With
problems like other people had.

Ms. Pore. Mr. Chairman, I would like to address one point that
you made a moment ago, and that was the communication with the
teachers.

And, as you’ve expressed it, DODDS is an international, huge
overseas school system, closest to the ninth largest in this country
if it were here.

One of the things that we have implemented since I've come on
board is that we have a contact with the Armed Services. A news-
letter that goes out overseas will periodically be addressed to
DODDS issues. That publication now goes out to schools and to
teachers. Issues that are coming up and places for them to respond
will be included in the publication, so that all family issues and
educational issues will be included so that they have a chance to be
answered.

They're alerted to changes and to budget conceras, and they are
given places and people to talk to about those concerns and try to
address some of those questions, so that the teachers are included
in the management focus and direction and understand what is
going on.

Mr. Forp. Thank you very much.

I want to thank you for your cooperation with the committee
again, and I apr.eciate the difficulty of trying to respond to us
after only 2 months over there.

As I said to you before the hearing, as a rule a Government ap-
pointee is an expert within 2 months.

You prokably think you know more about it now than you will 2
years from now. So, this is a good time to get to you.

Ms. Popk. I appreciate the opportunity.

Mr. Forp. And we look forward to cooperating with you in the
future. Please feel free to communicate with us or members of the
committee any time that you think it might be helpful in bringing
about our cooperation.

Ms. Pore. Uh-huh.

Mr. Forp. I’d like now to call Dr. Anthony Cardinale, former Di-
rector of the DODD Schools.

Good morning, Tony.

Do
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STATEMENT OF ANTHONY CARDINALE, FORMER DIRECTOR OF
DODDS

Mr. CarRDINALE. Good morning, sir.

Mr. Forb. It’s a pleasure to have you before the committee. And
I want to thank you for responding to our request for you to come
in.
You came to mind immediately as somebody who could be help-
ful to us about the school system.

I recall that you were very directly involved with our colleague,
John Erlenborn, who was the principal mover of this legislation, in
structuring the act authorizing the schools. You've therefore, inti-
mately acquainted with what we set out to do.

The bill that was ultimately passed was written in this subcom-
mittee, and it wasn’t changed very much as it went through the
rest of the process,

You do not have a prepared statement. Did you wish to make
any comments before we begin to ask questions?

Mr. CarbiNaLE. Yes, sir, I would. Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman.

It certainly is a privilege and an honor for me to be here this
morning. And I appraciate the chairman inviting me to attend this
hearing.

I feel very, very clese to the Overseas Dependents’ School Pro-
gram because, as I have just stated, I have been very, very much
involved with the program over a period of about 29 years.

. And, so, again, it’s very gratifying for 1ne to be here this morn-
ing.

I'd be very happy, sir, to answer any questions that you or any
member of the committee may have.

Mr. Forp. You were the first Director after the enactment of the
legislation. Previoulsy you had a comparable position. but then the
legislation statutorily created the Director.

So, you were there for the implementation of Public Law 95-561.
What could you tell us about that?

Mr. CArDINALE. Well, sir, when we—when the Defense Depart-
inent really became actively involved in the Overseas Dependents’
Schools Program was in early 1963. Anc you are absolutely correct
that prior to that time all that we would have in the Defense De-
partment appropriation act was a statement to the effect that you
have so many dollars per pupil for the operation of the scheol pro-

gram,

As I recall, this usually appeared in the DOD Appropriation Act,
either section 606 or 607. "t would chaage differently for each year.

It wasn’t until the Public Law 95-561 was enacted that this gave
a pure legislative base to the operation of the school prograin.

But in 1963 I was asked ‘o come over and to head up a unified
program,

As you’ve mentioned ear »r, eacn of the .nilitary departments
were operating their own dependents’ schools program. And at that
time, beginning about the middle of 1956, I was then directing the
Navy program. The Army had its program, and the Air Force its
program,
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And in February of 1963 ‘he Secretary of Defense decided that
this had to be unified because everybody was doing their own thing
in operating the school prugram. And I think the greatest consist-
ency were the inconsistencies that were taking place in the oper-
ation of the program.

But since 196.girthe Director of Dependents’ Education and subse-
quently the Director of DODDS was reporting to a Deputy Assist-
ant Secretary. And this was—the first Deputy Assistant &cretary
was for Education—a gentleman by the name of Ed Katzenbach.
The second Deputy Assistant Secretary for Education was a friend
of ours, Len Bartlett. And, subsequently, it ended with Dr. Rich
Rose being one of the last Deputy Assistant Secretaries for Educa-
tion.

The basic thrust of Public Law 95-561 was to establish a legisla-
tive base for the operation of the overseas program. And I think
several key factors in that program. One is the establishment of a
Director of DODDS for the program, who would be a civilian educa-
tor, and who would be appointed by the Secretary of Defense. I be-
lieve this is one of the passages or sections of the legislation, which
I believe was a very important aspect of the program, because it
did elevate the whole operation up a great deal in reporting, in this
case, to this Deputy Assistant for Education.

Within the organization of the Defense establishment, to get to
see the Assistant Secretary of Defense or the Secretary of Defense
i? a pretty hard job of trying to daily communicate with these gen-
tlemen.

The position of the Deputy Assistant Secretary I felt, in my years
of operation, was a very good place for that to be, in that you could
get in on the policy operation of the total Department of Defense
effort, and dependents’ education thus becoming a part of that
total operation.

Again, I think this legislation was very significant because it did
outline, basically, the duties of the Director of DODDS in this in-
stance.

And, in my judgement, the way that the program is still operat-
ing, I see that it would be in total agreement with the purposes
and the objectives of Public Law 95-561.

Having the Deputy Assistant Secretary—the title has been
changed, as Mrs. Pope has already testifiad—but in that there is an
advocate there at the highest level of the Defense hierarchy that is
interested in and supporting and ov rseeing the dependents’ school
operation—so, I don't believe thav is in conflict with the intent of
the legislation at this point.

Mr. Forr. Thank you.

Did you have decisionmaking authority in the use of appropri-
ated resources and personnel?

Mr. CARDINALE. Yes, sir, as the Director, with, of course, the ap-
proval of the Assistant Secretary, and with the approval of the
total budget process.

In preparing the budget for DODDS, it was submitted through
the normal DOD channels from our Office to the Office of the As-
sistant Secretary of Defense, “hrough the Deputy Assistant, at that
time, on to the Defense Controller, that made that, and had that,
as a part of the total Defense budget.
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And many times we would come over, testifying before both the
House and Senate Subcommittees on Appropriation, and also to the
subcommittee here, about the total cost fcr the operation of the
program and how these funds were going to be spent.

Once the Congress approved our budget, it came down to us. And
the Director of DODDg could, of course—well, not could—but had
the use of funds the way we had indicated the funds were going to
be used. So much for personnel, buildings, supplies, equipment, this
type of thing.

There was the decisionmaking where you had to move some
funds from one account to another account, but this was appropri-
ate. And each time, of course, it was with the approval of the As-
sistant Secretary of Defense and also the OSD Controller.

But as to how much we were budgeting for supplies, personnel,
administration, construction, and so forth was the responsibility of
the Director of DODDS.

Mr. Forp. Now, you were charged, under the law, to set up advi-
sory committees at the schools. Was that done?

Mr. CARDINALE. Yes, sir. That was done.

At each individual school, there was a school advisory committee.
That was an elected committee, by the parents, who i‘:ad children
in that particular school.

That was done almost immediately after the enactment of the
legislation. The basic guid:lines went out, and elections were held
at each of the individual schools.

And we also had—at the national level—a Defense advisory com-
mittee, which was also a part of the legislation, which also was es-
tablished. And, again, people were appointed from the various geo-
graphical areas.

As far as the local advisory councils were concerned—now, I'm
saying t} is as to what happened when we issued the directives and
so forth. I can’t speak for what’s happened within the last year,
year and a half, since my retirement in January 1985.

But we would have, at a large complex, for an example, at the
Heidelberg complex—I'm sure you're familiar with that—where
you had many schools, but they were part of one coordinating prin-
cipal, that you’d have one advisory council for the schools under
that particular coordinating principal.

And that was working very well, so that the parents had an
input into the policy operation of the local schools.

Mr. Forp. Now, during your tenure, did the Assistant Secretary
or Deputy get involved in operational policy issues, like personnel
classification and personnel assignments or school curriculum?

Mr. CARDINALE. Now, sir, not at that level, not at the Assistant
Secretary level or the Deputy Assistant Secretary level, in this
case, the Deputy Assistant for Education.

All of those policies were developed in coordination with those
two individuals. But we—the Director prepared the curriculum, set
the standards for teacher recruitment based upon Federal law,
based upon Civil Service requirements, based upon their swn De-
partment of Defense requirements. But all of these issues were ap-
proved by the Deputy Assistant. And if you needed the approval
and/or the signature of an Assistant Secretary or Secretary of De-
fense, that was a basic formality, in that they had to appiove it.
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But the staffing——
Mr. Forp. Did you have to have permission from the Secretary to

assl\}lgn 8ersonne1?
r. CARDINALE. No, sir. No. That was in our tcacher——

Mr. Forp. And establish curriculum?

Mr. CARDINALE. No, sir. That was not.

All of these were written into the guidelines to the Director of
DODDS after the enactment of Public Law 95-561. Then you have
to have a charter in the Defense establishment for what that par-
ticular office is going to do.

And that charter said that the Director of DODDS will perform
all of these functions, develop curriculur, negotiate contracts,
employ people, classify teachers, and so forth. So, that was a one-
time charge that was given by charter to the Director of DODDS,
as would be true for any position, a major position established
within the Defense Department.

So, that was the responsibility. And as those tiings were devel-
oped, as the curriculum was developed, the teacher recruitment re-
quirements, and so forth, the necessary coordination would take
place to be sure that what was being done was consistent with the
total Defense effort.

And then the Director of DODDS would sign the curriculum
guides that went out or would Si%le the brochure recruiting teach-
ers. But never—the Secretary or Deputy never really interfered in
that type of assignment of personnel.

We used to recruit, oh, on a yearly basis, an average of several
thousand teachers. And the principals of the overseas schools and
the regional directors would say, well, we want to hire these
peoplz. And we sent. We hired the people and sent them to the re-
gi(})lna.} directors. And they, in turn, assigned them to individual
schools,

Mr. Forp. Am [ accurate that it was contemplated that the
petrgo‘;x having the position of Director would be a professional edu-
cator?

Mr. CARDINALE. Yes, sir.

Mr. Forp. And, therefore, it follows that those decisions general-
ly made in a school system by the professional educators would be
made by that Director; wouldn’t they?

If you had someone else in the gefense establishment deciding
things like curriculum, you would really nullify he effect of
having a professional educator as a direcior?

Mr. CARDINALE. That’s correet.
toMr. ‘)FORD. While you were Director, did they ever try to do that

you?

Mr. CARDINALE. No, sir. No.

When we—we had a—we had a curriculum coordinating council.
And we had representatives in the—in the various geographical re-
gions. We had teacher representatives, we had administrators rep-
resentative, who would do the curriculum work, if you will, in at—
in at the school level.

They would meet and would recommend different programs, and
content, and testing, and that type of thing.

And, then, several times a year, we would have a central com-
mittee, at the Washington level, bringing in these representatives,
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with all their ideas, and concerns, and changes that they wished to
make. And then those were resolved at our level.

And then those decisions were made changing, if changing was
necessary, or modifying, or adding to the program, based upon the
school inout, and then our office, here in Washington, with the
expert of our educational personnel.

And then was developed and would go forward for approval that
this is what we are recommending. It would be approved. And then
that became the change or those changes would take place in the
curriculum, or text books series. whatever it might be.

Mr. Forp. Mr. Goodling.

Mr. GoopLING. How long were you the Director?

Mr. CARDINALE. Director of the Dependents’ Education from 1963
to about 1980—Ilate 1982. The Director of DODDS, as the chairman
mentioned, became effective in 1978. And I was the Director from
that time until the time of retirement.

Mr. GoopLING. Looking at public education, where would you
p}llacebt};e Director in a public school setup? What position would
that be? .

Mr. CarpINALE. Well, I always looked upon the Director as the
comparable of a State superintendent.

As Mr. Ford mentioned, this would be categorized as about the
ninth largest U.S. school system. And I would put that the Director
has a system of approximately 150,000 children. That is larger than
many of—of the total enrollment of many States combined, just
that large number.

Mr. GoopLING. Then where does that put the Deputy Assistant,
and then the Assistant Secretary, and then the Secretary, if you
were out in a public school?

Mr. CarbINALE. Well, I would put this the equivalent of the State
board of education.

Mr. GoopLING. Yes.

Mr. CARDINALE. These individuals here at the State board level.

You have the State superintendent, who works with a State
board. You have a local superintendent, who works with a local
school board.

So, if you made that categorization, I would say that the Deputy
Assistant Secretary, the current position would be as the chairman
of the State board of education at this point.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Having been a rather forceful educational leader,
I don’t want to say I would have trouble as Director, because the
job may be offered some time. I don’t want to preclude that possi-

ility. But it seems to me that it's a long way from the instruction-
al or noninstructional employee until you get to the Director, if I'm
.ooking at this right.

Teacher, principal, and advisory committee. I don’t know if the

advisory committees have any power, or do they just advise the
rincipal? And then you go on to a superintendent, and then the
ase, and then the region, and, finally, the Director.

Has this nany levels of authority created a problem for you as
far as communication is concern?

Mr. CARDINALE. No, sir, it didn’t.

The advisory committee, us you have well stated, is advisory to
the principal of that particular schooi, be it X, Y, Z school, that
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thi3 council would advise that principal on day-to-day operations or
concerns that parents may have.

But through the Federal structure, as I remember it, these teach-
ers and administrators are employees of DODDS. And in handling
the work, as you have mentioned also, that this is a far-flung
school system—you’re talking about 8, 10, 12 million square miles
that our system covers. We have people in—the last time, as I
recall, it was like 28 different countries, 2" out 190 different cities
and locations, and about 265 schools, all over, all over the world.

But if a teacher has a concern, a grievance—and, as I recall, we
established a grievance policy for teachers—that the teacher can go
to the principal. If the principal can’t resolve the matter, then it
goes to the regional superintendent.

But you do have civil service people who are base support people,
who are experts in civilian personnel rules and regulations, that
assist the Principal and/or the regional director.

If it can't be resolved at the regional director level, then it comes
up here to the—at least, in my case, it came to the Director of
DODDS. And the issue had to be resolved, either a hearing, looking
at the civil service rules and regulations.

And even at the DODDS level there is a staff of civilian person-
nel experts who were advising me what to do in these particular
cases.

Mr. GoopLING. Who is the local school board in the DODDS oper-
ation.

Mr. CARDINALE. I'm sorry, sir. [ didn’t——

Mr. GoopLiNG. Who is comparable to the local school board in
this operation here?

Mr. CARVINALE. The local school board——

Mr. GoopLiNG. Could noneducational pecple at the base level, re-
verse everything that was down below that?

Mr. CArRnINALE. Only the civilian personnel people, because
they’re charged with the responsibility of monitoring the civilian
personnel system if you will.

Mr. GoopLING. Then is the base the school board?

Mr. CARDINALE. At the base level. No. At the base level.

This is a Federal employee who is the—usually an employee of
the civilian personnel office at the base level.

We, in the past years, have an agreement and a contract with
the local bases to provide that type of civilian personnel expertise,
if you will, to our principals and to our regional directors.

And, as I say, even at the Washington level, DODDS has its own
civilian peisonnel office.

But anything invrlving a policy of the Defense Department, we
would have to go over to the Department of Defense, to their Office
of Civilian Personnel, and get their expertise and help in resolving
these matters.

Mr. GoopLING. So, the military part of the base, for instance,
would not get involved in curriculum decisions?

Mr. CARDINALE. No. That's right. They would not.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Thank you.

Mr. Forp. Mr. Hawkins.

Chairman Hawxkins. Doctor, you seemed to indicate at the begin-
ning that the reorganized system is in compliance with the law.
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Did I understand that?

Mr. CArRDINALE. That’s correct.

Chairman Hawkins. And you also, I think, said that it could be
looked upon as an elevation of the organization.

Mr. CARDINALE. Yes, sir.

Cbairman Hawkins. In what way, then, is it an improvement on
the system as it operated under the—during the time that you
were Director, I think beginning in 1978 up until—was it 1983?

Mr. CARDINALE. Yes, sir.

Chairman Hawkins. During that time, we thought it operated
rather efficiently and very well.

Mr. CARDINALE. Yes, sir.

Chairman Hawkins. Now, in what way has it been improved or
will be improved under the new system that precluded you, during
that period of time, from doing the things that you now indicate
can be done?

Mr. CarpINaLE. Well, during that time, I also was reporting to a
Deputy Assistant Secretary, not directly to the Assistant Secretary
of Defense. But that individual had a wide range of military poli-
cies, if you will, on pay, and compensation for the military, that
t%pe of thing. And we were a civilian operation, operating within
that.

But under the current setup, the way I envision it, the way I see
it, is that you do have this family support group there, the family
support services that Mrs. Pope is responsible for, and tying that in
with the Dependents’ Education Program. So, you have a strong
advocate there for families. And I would include education as part
of families, family service.

Chairman Hawkins. Are you saying it’s more educational and
less military?

Mr. CARDINALE. In carrying ou. the responsibilities and the time
and attention that would be devoted to it at the highest levels of
Defense, I would say yes.

One of the—one of the reasons of Public Law 95-561 is that the
committee felt and Defense felt that we wanted this to be a civilian
type operation.

And I believe snme of the questions mentioned or asked this
morning led to that, that we—that this should be a civilian func-
tion we're talking about, the education of children, be the child of
an Army individual, Air Force, or Navy. That’s unrelated as far as
I am concerned. It’s the education that that youngster is entitled to
which is quite important.

And I can see that happening, more attention being paid to that
effort at the—at the Deputy Assistant Secretary level, based upon
the responsibility that——

Chairman Hawkins. Then you're saying it goes beyond simple
reporting. It isn’t a question of who reports to whom, but that
there are other changes that will be made in addition to the report-
ing features of the reorganized system. Is that a true statement?

Mr. CARDINALE. I would think so, in that the expertise is there
by the DODDS system. And you've got to have your advocates. You
have to have your support people in the Pentagon to help you
achieve the objectives that are being settled on and stated for the
operation of the program.
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And I think that this Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary,
the title, of course, Family Support, Education, and Safety, leads to
that, in that there is a vehicle for getting to the Assistant Secre-
tary and to the Secretary in a very quick manner.

But you do have a person full time whom ycu can, you know, dis-
cuss the issues and get the support needed to make these programs
operate.

Chairman Hawkins. Thank you.

Thank you, very much.

Mr. Forp. Thank you very much, Dr. Cardinale. Once again, I
want to thank you for your cooperation in the past.

Mr. CarDINALE. Thank you very much, sir.

Mr. Forp. We're happy to see you in the Washington area so
that we can continue to rely on your experience and expertise with
the DODD Schools.

Mr. CarDINALE. Yes, sir. It's my pleasure to do it at any time.

Mr. Forp. We're very happy to see you again.

Mr. CARDINALE. Thank you very much.

Mr. Forp. Now, Dr. Beth Stephens, Director of the Department
of Defense Dependents’ Schools.

Without objection, tne prepared statement will be inserted in full
in the record at this point.

[Prepared statement of Beth Stephens follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF BETH STEPHENS, PH D, DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
DEFENSE DEPENDENTS SCHOOL

MR. CHAIRMAN AND HMEMBERS OF 7T4% CCr¥ITTEE, I A! 3I7a

STEPHENS, DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE DEPEZI ZZ.T

SCHOOLS (DoDDS).

DoDDS RESPECTFULLY SUBNITS ITS VIEWS ON PUBLIC LAW 95-561
AND ON THE ORGAKIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF DoDDS. PUBLIC LAW 95-56:
PROVIDED THE LEGISLATIVE FOUNDATION FOR THE DoD OVERSTAS SCHOOL
SYSTEM. URTIL ITS ENACTMENT 1IN 1978, THZ EDUCATION OF THE MINOR

DEPENDENTS OF OUR MILITARY FORCES IN FOREIGH LANDS WAS SCLELY

DEPENZENT ON ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS. THROUGH ITS wIspor,
CONGRESS DID ENSURE THE FUNDING AND, THEREFORE, THE CONTINLATION
OF THE OVERSEAS SCHOOLS. MCREOVER, PUBLIC LAW 95-561 REPRISINTEIO

-

A SINCERE EFFORT TO PROVIDE THE CHAILDRINL OF OUR OVEIRSEAS FLFILS

EDUCATIONAL OPPCPTUNITIES AT LEAST IQUAL TO ThHOSE AVAILABLD In

U.S5. PUBLIC SCHOOLS.

DoDJS IS PROUD OF ITS ACCOMPLISHMINTS,. IT IS A UNIQJE
SCHOOL  SYSTEM WHICH MUST OPERATE UNDER DIFFICULT Col-
DITIONS--DIFFICULT FOR THE STUDENTS, THE PAPENTS, THE TEACKERS,
AND THE YANAGERS. THE QUALITY OF ITS TEACHERS LONG HAS BEE!
RECOGNIZED. RECENTLY THE QUALITY OF ITS STUDENTS AND PRINCIPALS

HAS BEEN RECOGNIZED,

THIS YEAR DoDDS AVERACE SCORES ON THE COMPREHMENSIVE TIST CF

BASIC SKILLS, GRADES 3 THROUGE 1i, EXCEEDE. THE NATIONAL AVIRAZS

BY 7 TO 16 POINTS. FOR THE TENTH CONSECUTIVE YEAR, DoDDS SEINIOR3

O
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AVERAGED HIGHER SCORES ON THE SCHOLASTIC APTITUDE TEST Thal
STUDENTS NATIONVIDE; DODDS STUDENTS' SCORES WEPZ 11 POINTS ABC.:
THE NATINONAL AVERAGE ON THE VERBAL SECTION AND S5 POINTS ABOJE C..

THE MATHEMATICS SECTION. -

SIX OF poDDS SCrOOLS RECEIVED AWARDS FOR EXCELLENCE FRO THEZ
DEPARTMEIRT OF EDUCATION SECONDARY SCHOOLS RECOGHITION PFOGRA.
THREE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PRINCIPALS WERE RECOGNIZED IN TaE
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL RECOGNITION PROGRAM. SIX DODDS PPINCIPALS WEF:
AMONG 110 CHOSEZN NATIONALLY FOR THE HARVARD PRINCIPALS CENTEP
INSTITUTE. TWO OF DoDDS TEACHERS WEPL FINALISTS IN THE TESAZ-IF
IN SPACE PROGRAM, THREE RECEIVED DISTINGUISHED TEACHING AWARDS
FROM THE NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR GEOGRAPRIC EDUCATORS.
ADDIT:OﬂAL:Y, DODDS STUIZENTS PAFTICIPATED 1IN THE SENATE 10T~
PROGRAM, 24 WERZ SEMIFINALISTS IN TH: MEIRIT 3CHCLARSHIP PROGF ",

FIVE WERE SEMIFINALISTS IN THE NATIUNAL ACPIEVEMENT SChHOLAFSHIP

(3]

PROGRAM FOR JUTSTANDING NEGRC STUDENTS AND THREE ARE IN T-T

SHMITHSONIAN SUMMER INTERN PROGRAM.

A RECERTIPICATION PROGRAM WAS ESTABLISHED AND HAS =Iu
SUCCESSFULLY OPERATED POR ABOUT 6 YEARS. AS A RESULT CrI TrIS
EXPERIENCE, THZ  PROGRAM  RECENTLY HAS BEEN  REVISED AND
SIGNIFICANTLY IMPROVED. IT PROVIDES AN INCENTIVE FOR EZUCATORS
TO UPGRADE THEIR SKILLS AND, WEZ BELIEVE IMPROVES THE RECOGKITIO!
OF THE TEACHERS AKD THE SCHOOLS BY THE PARZNTS AND OTHE® SCh...

JURISDICTIONS.

El{lC 3o

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



33

THZI ORGAKIZATIONAL STPUCTURE OF DoDDS KAS BEEN EXTENSIVEILY
STUDIZD SINCE 1 WAS APPOINTEID TO 7TsZ POSITION OF DIRECTCE oIt
1982. CHANGES HAVE BEEN MADE WHICH RENEDY VALIDATED DEF !
IN STAUCTURE AND STAFFING.

IN SUMMARY, PUBLIC LAW 95-561 HAS BEIN VERY BENEFICIAL TO
DODODS AND TO THE COMMUNITIES THAT IT SERVES,

o
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Mr. Forp. And you may proceed to add to it, supplement it, high-
light it, or comment on it any way you feel will be most illuminat-
ing to this record.

STATEMENT OF BETH STEPHENS, DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF
DEFENSE DEPENDENTS’ SCHOOLS

Ms. StepHENS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and also members of
the committee.

It’s a pleasure to be here. I also would like to express my appre-
ciation to Dr. Cardinale. He was the first Director of DODDS. As I
follow in his footsteps, I marvel at the obstacles that he overcame.

It’s a pleasure to share this morning, also, with the representa-
tives of the Overseas Education Association and the Overseas Fed-
eration of Teachers.

During our recent and, I must say, very severe budget cuts, tne
teachers were the real heroes and heroines.

As we made efforts to preserve jobs and to preserve the quality
of education, I met with sincere understanding and support from
our teachers and their union representatives.

Now, if I may, I would like to add a few comments.

As I read Public Law 95-561, the Director of Dependents’ Schools
should report at least to an Assistant Secretary of Defense.

The Director also has very specific and comprehensive responsi-
bilities for the management of DODDS.

In the testimony here today, it’s been stated that the Office of
the Assistant Secretary is being reorganized.

The Dependents’ Education System, DODDS, now is under a Di-
rector of Dependents’ Schools Policy; who is under a Director of
Family Support, Education, and Service, a Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary; who is under the principal Deputy Assistant Secretary; who is
unlder the Assistant Secretary of Force Management and Person-
nel.

An organizational chart was disseminated by the Assistant Secre-
tary in February. It showed us under the Director of Dependents’
Schools Policy.

In June 1986, another organizational chart was disseminated
guit again showed us under the Director of Dependents’ Schools

olicy.

The chart that was presented here today differs from the two
that have been disseminated as official charts by the Assistant Sec-
retary.

Also, [——

Mr. Forp. The most recent chart distributed was June what?

Ms. StepHENSs. June 1286. I can submit it for the record if you
gkf" It shows DODDS under the Director of Dependents’ Schools

olicy.

Mr. Forp. I have a chart entitled Family Support, Education,
and Safety, with the date June 1986 on ii. Is this the chart you're
talking about?

Ms. StepHENS. That’s it. Yes.

Mr. Forp. Without objection, this will be inserted at this point in
the record.

[The information referred to follows:]
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Mr. Forp. This is the one that I asked Mrs. Pope about. And she
indicated that this had not been and was not going to be imple-
mented.

Have you been informed of that?

Ms. STEPHENS. We received an official dissemination of the orga-
nization of the Assistant Secretary of Force Management and Per-
sonnel. It broke the organization into charts for the directorates.
That was the chart that was in the document for the Deputy As-
sistant Secretary of Family Support.

Mr. Forp. So, this is the last chart that you have seen?

}I:!Is. STEPHENS. Yes, until Mrs. Pope’s testimony furnished an-
other.

Mr. Forp. And, so, are you, in fact, now reporting to the Director
of Dependents’ Schools Policy?

Ms. StepHENS. The Director of Dependents’ Schools Policy is over

us.

Mr. Forp. Well, do you report to that person?

Ms. STEPHENS. 1—that’s & good question. I don’t——

Mr. Forp. In other words, can you walk in to see the Assistant
Secretary or the Deputy Assistant Secretary, or do you have to go
through the office of the Director of Dependents’ Schools Policy?

Ms. SteprENS. 1 do not necessarily go through the Director of De-
pendents’ Schools Policy. But he does call and ask DODDS staff to
do things for him without going through me.

Mr. Forp. Now, on the chart that was submitted by Mrs. Pope
today it shows a parallel structure with the Director of Depend-
ents’ Schools Policy reporting directly to the Deputy Assistant Sec-
retary and the Director of DODDS reporting directly to the Deputy
Assistant Secretary on an equal {ooting.

1 looked at the writeup when Mrs. Pope was appointed. The re-
lease ‘hat came from the Defense Department indicated that they
looked at the Director of Dependents’ Schools Policy as the office
responsible for the education of dependents in the United States.
She referred to them as the section six schools. And, by and large,
that’s where they are.

The Director of DODDS was referred to in that release, announc-
ing the reorganization which brought Mrs. Pope’s position into ex-
istence, as being similarly primarily responsible for the education
of dependents outside of the United States.

Now, is that the way you picture it now functioning?

Ms. StEPHENS Mr. Chairman, if I may, I would like to discuss
the position description of the new Director of Dependents’ School
Policy. I think it documents that Public Law 95-561 is being ig-

nored.

In May 1986, a position was established in the Office of the
Deputy istant Secretary of Defense for Family Services, Educa-
tion, and Security, which does appear to absorb or to control the
responsibilities and authority of the Director of DODDS.

The position was established &s the Director of Dependents’
Schools Programs, not policy, programs, with the responsibility
for—and 1 do quote frora this official position description—with re-
sponsibility for all activities involved in the planning, direction, op-
eration, control, and coordination required in the administration of
all dependents’ schools programs.
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6If;’s my belief thet that statement is counter to Public Law 94-
561.

This position description further states that the incumbent of the
position is responsible for assisting the Deputy Assistant Secretary
in establishing policies that are governing the management of the
dependents’ schools programs.

From these duties and from the organizational charts that have
been officially disseminated, it’s clear that all planning, direction,
operation, control, and coordination required in the administration
of DODDS—that'’s the overseas school system—has been removed
from DODDS and has been centralized under the Director of D.-
partments’ Schools Programs.

In addition, both manpower and fiscal resources of our school
system have been appropriated by the Deputy Assistant Secretary
to establish her office.

We have been required to furnish seven spaces, and to furnish
fiscal support for these spaces.

These actions do not appear consistent with Public Law 95-561.

You might appreciate one example of our situation. The coordi-
nator for our voc ed, that’s vocational education, career education
program, accepted a promotion, a position with the Navy.

Vocational education is ver important to DODDS, because a
large number of our students are not college bound.

We recruited for this position, which had veen vacant for ovsr 1
year, and we finally received authority to fill the position. We had
a highly qualified candidate. But just as we were to appoint the in-
dividual that was selected, the Deputy Assistant Secretary directed
me not to hire him. That's the Deputy Assistant Secretary for
Family Services.

After trying very persuasive argume:ts based upon the needs of
our educational program, I reminded the Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary that my position had been established to make such routine
decisions.

On the next work day, she provided me with the written state-
ment—that I can provide for *he record—made by the Department
of Defense General Counsel, which, if you will review it, it states in
effect that anyone can be given the autherity to direct and manage
DODDS.

To me this is counter to Public Law 95-561.

Actually, the results of what you might term management by
whim have been sad and they've been frightening. Neither I nor
my regional directors can establish, abolish, or even modify an
above school level position without the express approval of the
Deputy Assistant Secretary.

Moreover, this restriction includes such positions as clerk typists
at the GS-3 and -4 level.

Further, our attempts to manage the recent budget reductions
were confused and hampered by continuous delays and changes by
the Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary.

Finally, our management image has become distorted by the .on-
fusion and incompetence that now is reigning in the Office ot the
Assistant Secretary, and Deputy Assistant Secretary, Force Man-
agement and Personnel.

Q 4 (:i
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The media and the miiitary community have been treated to
most unusual press releases from the Assistant Secretary about
DODDS. The latest appeared in the Stars and Stripes. It resulted
from an interview with Assistant Secretary Cox.

In it, there’s the statement that the current system of school ad-
visory commitiees and installation advisory committees is an old
sort of obsolete system. This is the system of advisory committees
that’s mandated in Public Law 95-561.

Another example is the vacillation that occurred in providing ap-
proval for the budget reductions that were required by the Gramm-
Rudman-Hollings Act and our congressional resolutions and reduc-
tions.

In January, specifically January 15th, we received word that
there would be reductions. On January the 16th and 17th, we had
prolonged conferences with our regional directors, who were in the
office at that time, and ducided on the approach to be used in ef-
fecting budget reductions should they become necessary in Febru-
ary.
We asked for conferenccs with the then Acting Deputy Assistant
Secretary and the Assistant Secretary to review these so we wonld
be prepared to move out.

We experienced delays caused by their offices, i.e., requests for
more input from the regional directors, counterdelays.

Finally, approximately 75 days later, we received permission to
notify the regional directors of the cuts. That was March 26th.

At the same time, we prepared a release *o the senior command-
ers notifying them of the proposed cuts. The release had to be
cleared within the Assistant Secretary’s Office. Clearance was not
received urtil 3 days laier. In the meanwhile, the press had pub-
lished our budget cuts. The commanders read it from the rewspa-
per rather than from the official notification that we had prepared.

Furthermore, if we coula have worked with the Deputy Assistant
Secretary and the As- , int Secretary in achievirg thesr oroposed
reductions in a timel. wnanner, there would have bee.. a window of
time that would have raade it possible to have received input from
the commanders in the tield, from parent groups, and from teacher
groups prior to the announcement. But we did not receive author-
ity or release on the announcement until March the 28th or 3lst.

We imme "' ~tely announced the bidget cuts. Tncluded in the an-
nouncemer ~ the statement that school opening would be de-
layed unt nber the 15th.

We hac «2d the budget and rescrubbed it, and that was the
earliest we open school.

However, «..ile we were exerting these extreme budget efforts,
we had agked the comptroller if we could reduce the mirimum
amount that "ve were required to spend on repair and mainte-
nance. The answer came back that we could not.

At that time, we had delayed announcement of the school open-
ing date as long as we could, so we announced September 15th as
the opening.

Two days later, we received word from the comptroller that we
could reduce the minimum amount that had to be spent on repair
and maintenance.
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When this was received, I then, in a desire to open school as soon
as possible, utilized the money that could be transferred from
repair and maintenance to other items, and announced that school
would open on September the 5th.

It may appear to the public as though I vacillated. But I moved
as quickly as possible as more money became available that could
be used to open school. I would do it again, even though it might
appear that I was vacillating.

If money was available, the schools should be opened. There’s no
point in having teachers and buildings if you don’t have pupils
there to educate.

I would like to address the advisory committees if I might.

The legislation pruvides that the Director shall establish advisory
councils, at the school level, and specifies how they are to be orga-
nized.

But, at the present, the Deputy Assistant Secretary plans to es-
tablish a position to coordinate the work of the advisory councils in
the office of the Director of Dependents’ Schocls Policy.

I don’t know how these advisory councils are going to finction or
to whom they will give advice. The Deputy Assistant Secretary is
having their charter rewritten.

At the same time, the Deputy Assistant Secretary has proposed
to cut the staff in my office, which has handled advisory council
correspondence for me, and transfer it over to her office, that is,
build her staff. With the staff in my office, I am able to review and
respond to the school advisory council recommendations, and to do
80 in a timely manner.

Without this staff, I'll be very hard pressed to respond to the
volume of input that we get from these councils

There’s one more area that I would like to aadress this morning.
IODDS has been well stulied. Reorganization and studies are not
new words 10 us.

We in the educational field, Mr. Goodling, never realized just
how much money and effort is expended on self study in the De-
partment of Defense.

Since I joined DODDS in 1982, DODDS management has been
subjected to 17 major audits, inspections, and proposed reorganiza-
tion.

One, of course, was the study that was mandated by Public Law
§5-561. Another was a continucus study from 1982 until 1984 of
our manpower needs, which was conducted by our personnel divi-
sion.

In this study, we utilized the manpower specialists of U.S. Army
Europe and Seventh Army. Both studies, the one that you, the Con-
gress asked for, £~ d the one that we conducted, were very helpful
in guiding our future actions.

Both of them found that DODDS was an efficient, capable school
system:.

The study that was mandated by Public Law 95-561 resulted in
my decision to move the overseas management resources closer to
the schools. This wes done by establishing chief school adrinistra-
tor offices.
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Actually, these offices are located midway between the local
schools and the regional offices, much as district superintendents’
offices are located in larger school systems in the United States.

Theee chief schoo! administrators average having approximately
14 schools under them.

When these were established, there was a gradual transfer of the
regional headquarters staff resources into these school complexes.

A DODDS inspector general inspection team, in 1984 through
1985, formed the opinion, though, that we weren’t transferring
these resources fast enough.

While I was trying to reach a resolution with the inspector gen-
eral on how fast and how much the regional headquarters were to
be reduced, the Assistant Secretary of Defense imposed an employ-
ment freeze on DODDS.

This was a very astounding method of resolution. It completely
preventc ¥ us from staffing our chief school administrator offices,
and it reduced the transfer of programs from the regional head-
quarters to zero.

The inspector general also directed that the U.3. Army Manpow-
er Requirements and Documentation Agency [USAMARDA] con-
(118% a worldwide study of DODDS. This was initiated in the fall of

In March 1986, the study was completed. In essence, this stud
stated that through reorganization DODDS could be reduced world-
wide by 79 above school level employees over a period of 4-year re-
organization.

Although we disagreed with USAMARDA’s recommendations,
we did agree to proceed with the reorganization.

Basically, we didn’t believe that a reduction of 79 in an organiza-
tion of almost 13,000 staff justified the original studr or our contin-
ued concern and the continuance of the freeze on our hiring.

The desire was to stop the studies, lift the employment freeze,
and be able to devote our effort to the education of our students.

This opinion not to reorganize DODDS, to leave it as it was, that
we had had a good year, and that things were going well in
DODDS is reflected in written statements that addressed the reor-
ganization by the U.S. Commander of the European Command and
the Commander of the U.S. Army in Europe. These can be provided
for the record.

In writing, they state that DODDS has been subjected to numer-
ous reorganizations, and what it really needs now is to avoid reor-
ganization, to have their administration that is functioning well
stabilized and proceed to do what it’s doing well, educate children
of the overseas military and civilian employees.

The senior commanders went on record as stating that LLODDS
did not need to be reorgenized. Rather they need a stabilized ad-
ministrative structure and a continuance of what they now have,

If you should ask what recommenrdations I, as Director would
make, I would say adhere to all of the provisions of Public Law 95-
561. It serves DODDS well. DODDS has increased in quality and
efficiency under it.

But currently the administrative responsibilities that Congress
gave to the Diiector are being pulled into the Treputy Assistant

ecretary’s office und placed under the Director of Dependents’
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Schools Policy, thereby creating another bureaucratic layer that is
implementing—and I do emphasize this—political, rather than edu-
cational policy. Even minor activities in the regions are now being
dictated by the Deputy Assistant Secretary, who does not have a
background of educational administration.

Perhaps you can consider mak..ig DODDS an agency. That would
permit it to function in a manner that’s analogous to a State edu-
cation agency, which actually is the role that was assigned to it in
Public Law 95-561.

I would ask you to consider shutting off the stream of studies
that have been and are being conducted of DODDS.

Stabilize .he administrative structure. Let DODDS educators
devote their energies and funds to running DODDS.

Spend money on the schools, and we do need it now in light of
our budget cuts, rather than on studies and on reorganization.

I beg you to make DODDS a true educational institution rather
than a political one.

Thank you.

Mr. GoopLinG. Who approved your written testimony?

Did ygu have to submit your written testimony to someone to ap-
prove it?

Ms. STEPHENS. I submitted my written testimony up through the
channels to the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense.

She called back and asked that some of it be eliminated, that the
Assistant Secretary had asked that it be. I compl'sd, and you have
my written testimony that was submitted through them.

Mr. GoopLING. I noticed there was a big difference between your
written testimony and what you had to say. That’s why I asked
that question.

Prior to the last 2 months, I assume that you had pretty much
control over curriculum, hiring, and decisionmaking in relationship
to the everyday operation of the school. Did you?

Is that the way you felt prior to the last 2" months, that you were
at the level of a State superintendent of education?

Ms. STEPHENS. I was always aware that there was oversight, and
I think there should be.

After I became Director of DODDS, the administration of
DODDS was moved up directly under the Assistant Secr-tary. It
had been under a Deputy Assistant, but it moved up directly under
the Assistant Secretary, and we profited from that.

We did have contacts with the different agencies that have been
referred to this morning, but we had contact at a higher level, and
the coordination became more highly interrelated because of the
higher level contact.

tarting last fall, an Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary started
the implementation of the current anticipated or currently being
effected reorganization.

The activity heightened starting in January and February of this
year.

The Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary implemented, in essence,
what is being carried out now by the newly appointed Deputy As-
sistant Secretary.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Who was the Assistant Secretary when you first
became the Director?
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Ms. STepHENS. A Dr. Korb was the Assistant Secretary.

Mr. GoopLiNG. Pardon?

Ms. StepHENS. A Dr. Korb was the Assistant Secretary until last
September.

Mr. GoopLING. So, these changes have basically taken effect
since a new Assistant Secretary has come on board?

Ms. StepHENS. There was a period from September, from the
titne of Dr Korb’s resignation, until Mr. Cox was appointed, that
the person who had been principal, Deputy Assistant Secretary
ﬁnder Dr. Korb, served as Acting. Assistant Secretary, a Mr. Cal-

oun.

These changes were proposed last August. But they really were
not effected. There was no move.nent on them until approximately
January or February of this year. Generally, the status quo was
maintained.

Mr. GoopLING. Thank you.

Mr. Forp. I'm looking at the Congressiona: Record from May 20,
1985. In the Senate, an amendment was introduced to repeal the
transfer of the DODD Schools to the Department of Education.
This is amendment it was part of a compromise, which was out-
lined on the Senate floor, and it included making a number of
changes in the Advisory Counril on Dependents’ Education.

The amendment stated that there would be a council consisting
of 12 individuals appointed by the Secretaries of Defense and Edu-
cation.

Now, has that been done?

Ms. SterHENS. The action for that rests within the Assistant Sec-
retary of Defense.

We have worked on that up until, I would say, 2 months ago. The
Deputy Assistant Secretary has assmmed responsibility for that
since that point in time.

Mr. Forp. Now, many of us who were enthusiastic supporters of
the idea of transferring DODD Schools to a Department of Educa-
tion, when one was created, have since cooled. At least this is one
of them who has cooled off on that issue.

I'm now satisfied for two reasons that it would be a mistake. The
first and foremost reason is the present Secretary of Education.
And I make no apology for suggesting that I don’t want to transfer
anything to his jurisdiction that I care about.

And the second reason the transfer would be a mistake is that
it's very clear that in many parts of the world we would have seri-
ous personnel problems for the employees in school systems if we
removed them from their status of being Defense Department em-
ployees and had them emnployed by some other agency.

Now, I understand that while I was out of the room taking a call
from the Speaker that you said something about wanting to es.ab-
li}?h ?DODDS as an independent agency. Did you want to amplify
that?

Ms. StepHENS. I think if—you look at analogous situations within
the states, they're called education agencies. And DODDS and the
functions that it performs under Public Law 95-561 are functions
that are analogous to those that are expected in an agency.

A school system that’s responsible for 150,000 pupils and over
12,000 staff could be considered for agency status.
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Mr. Forp. Then you’re not talking about establishing it as a sep-
arete, freestanding entity. You're talking about changing its status
within Defenge?

Ms. StePHENS. I think it would remain within the Degartment of
?efense. There are other agencies within the Department of De-
ense.

Mr. Forp. What would you look to as a parallel to the kind of
structure that you suggest?

Ms. STEPHENS. There are several agencies. There’s the Defense
Mapping Agency within the Department of the Defense that is ac.
tuaﬁy smaller in terms of staff than DODDS. There’s the Defense
Logistics Agency.

f you really want to look at the administrative structure of
DDS, the educational system that i more nearly analogous to
DODDS is the State of Hawaii. They h. : a State education agency
that relates to the schools in practically an equivalent manner to
%D%%y that the DODDS, headquarters, relates to the schools in

They have schools located on different islands. They are not as
dispersed geographically as DODDS, but they are dispersed.

The Hawaiian school system is quite similar in structure to ours,
It operates as a state agency; and I emphasize agency. And it does
it so successfully.

Mr. Forp. The legislation which canceled the transfer also in-
cluded was also a requirement that the Secretary of Defense con-
sult with the Secretary of Education on educational programs and
practices of the DODD schools,

Now, at what level does that consultation take place?

Are you involved in the consultation?

Ms. StepHENS. At DODDS level, we do confer with persons in
charge of specialized areas within the Department of Education
For example, science, or math, or special education are different
areas.

We go directly to our counterparts in the Department of Educa-
tion for information.

The National Advisory Council the one that is legislatively pro-
vided for, should draw from experts in the Department of I{duca-

tions for our programes.

DODDS could benefit immeasurably from that type of input from
this National Advisory Council membership.

Mr. Ford; All right.

Now, the National Advisory Council was transferred from Educa-
tion to Defense at the time that this legislation was passed. Has
that Advisory Council now been constituted with joint appointees
of the Secretary of Education and the Secretary of Defense?

Ms. StePHENS. I can’t answer that.

The charter had to be slightly rewritten to conform to the new
legislation.

Mr. Forp. Well, who do they advise?

Ms. SrePHENS. They should advise DODDS.

Mr. Forp. Do they, as a matter of fact?

Ms. StepHENS. In'the past, they did. Yes.

-
.
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We attended the meetings. They would give us written reports,
with suggestions and recommendations, and we attended to them.

Mr. Forp. You say in the past. When did they last meet?

Ms. StepHENS. They have not had a meeting since the legislation
transferred it to the Department of Defense.

The charter had to be redrawn. That was done. I worked with
representatives from the Department of Education on the structure
of the committee.

Then the Deputy Assistant Secretary asked for it, and it is now
in her hands. I can’t answer what has occurred since that point in
time, but there has been no meeting.

Mr. Forp. Well, 'm afraid that we'll have to ask it at the Depuvty
Assistant Secretary level maybe, and find out what happened to
that council.

It wasn't intended that it would be terminated by this legisla-
tion. Quite the contrary, that, in fact, that it would actively consult
with and be advisory to you and your people over there.

Ms. STEPHENS. I worked with a Deputy Undersecretary of Educa-
tion in formulating the structure of it, and in considering the type
of person that could serve beneficially as members.

Mr. Forp. The press release made at the time of the appointment
off:f!;he Deputy Assisiant Secretary for Family Matters describes her
office.

Ms. Pope’s office is charged with coordinating family educational
and safety policy for the services, and for DOD level activities, such
as, dependents’ schools.

It encompasses the Safety and Occupational Health Office, the
DOD Explosive Safety Board, the Family Policy Office, the Military
Family Resource Center, the Dependents’ Schools Policy Office
which is responsible for dependents’ educatirn in the United

tates], and the Department of Defense Dependents’ Schools, which
handle education for dependents overseas.

Now, Public Law 95-561 very specifically says that DODDS’ mis-
sion is overseas dependents, not domestic dependents.

The Defense Department established wiiac would appear to be a
counterpart to your office for domestic dependent education.

Now, as you describe it to me, it’s being structured, however, so
that the Department created to oversee domestic education will
also be overseeing the overseas education, is that correct?

Ms. STePHENS. The official job description of the person that is
filling that positior: states that that will be his responsibility.

b N{(r. Forp. Excuse me. I must run for a vote. And I'll be right
ack.

[Brief recess.]

Mr. Forp. I'm sorrv for the interruption.

Ms. StepuENs. TH s quite all right.

Mr. Forp. In As.istant Secretary Cox’s new organizational struc-
ture, in what way do you report to Mr. Cox?

Ms. STEPHENS. Actually, I don’t.

The Deputy Assistant Secretary has weekly meetings of the
people in her directorate. We met yesterday in a weekly meeting.
It was about a 30-minute meeting. That’s the communication that
exists.

She, in turn, goes to his meetings.
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Mr. Forp. Well, the statute says that you are supposed to be re-
porting to an Assistant Secretary.

Ms. SrepHENS. I did report to the Assistant Secretary when the
organizational chart, which reflected the structure, had me report-
ing directly to him. That is no longer true.

Mr. Forp. Now, is that the part of the reorganization that you
feel is inconsistent with the statute?

Ms. STEPHENS. Yes, I do.

Mr. Forp. The statute says rather clearly that the Director shall
report to the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Manpower Reserve
Affairs and Logistics.

MNow, that title has been changed, but its position is that held by

r. Cox.

Ms. StEPHENS. That complete directorate was reorganized. Actu-
ally it was reduced, it now has about one fourth of the responsibil-
ity it previously had. Mr. Cox’s maintains a fraction of the respon-
sibility that was lodged previously in the other.

Mr. Forp. Well, who has the function® Who would be the Assist-
ant Secretary to whom you are ultimately reporting?

Ms. STEPHENS. Mr. Cox.

Mr. Forp. But you report to him only through the Assistant——

Ms. StepHENS. The Deputy Assistant Secretary.

Mr. Forp. The Deputy Assistant Secretary.

And do you report directly to the Deputy Assistant Secretary, or
ii)ol_yot; now go through this other Office of Dependents Schools

olicy’

Ms. StepHENs. Well, I don’t know. I suppose we’'d almost have to
define what reporting is.

I contact her, and she contacts me.

However, this Director of Dependents’ Schools Policy contacts
the DODDS Regional Directors overseas directly, directs them to do
t{:@ngs, and contacts my staff and directs the DODDS staff to do
things.

Mr. Forp. Well, now, you mean that this Policy Director is going
directly to employees of the DODDS system overseas?

s. STEPHENS. “Without abserving the current administrative
structure. He Las called DODDS overseas staff and asked them to
gather data and information and report it to him.

Mr. Forp. But has he done anything in the nature of making any
personnel moves or anything of that kind?

Ms. STEPHENS. No, but the deputy assistant.

I think the Secretary has; he works with Mrs. Pope on such mat-
ters.

Mr. Forp. I'm curious as to what this other directorate really is.

Ms. StepHENS. In her absence, he signs official correspondence
for her. In her absence, he seems to be in charge o1 her directorate.
He is the one that signs documents. And issues directives to the
DODDS staff.

Mr. Forp. The office overseeing a cection six school doesn’t hire
any teachers does it?

Ms. STEPHENS. Section six schools, no. Those schools are within
the continental limits of the United States.

Mr. Forp. Those are all contract schools aren’t they?
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Ms. StepHENS. They have school boards. The school boards are
responsible for the personnel.

Mr. Forp. The personnel does not become Government personnel
is the point 'm making. The section six employees are not employ-
ees directly of the Federal Government. They’re employees of the
contract school aren’t they?

Ms. STepHENS. They are employees of the contract school, but, in
turn, the contract school is Government owned or operated. So, in-
directly, they are employees of the Federal Government.

Mr. Forp. I wasn’t aware that we actually operated the schools
through the section six. I thought that we contracted, generally,
with some other school authority to operate them for us.

Ms. STEPHENS. Section six schools are schools that are located on
military bases.

Mr. Forp. Right.

Ms. STEPHENS. And are operated by the Department of Defense,
by the military service that has that base actually. Of course, that
is a part of the Department of Defense. They are administered
through a elected school board. The superintendent is answerable
to the school board.

Mr. Forp. Now, is it your understanding that the primary re-
sponsibility of Mr. Navares is to overlook and direct those schools?

Ms. StepHENS. I had thought, in the past, that that was correct.

But when you read the position description that was in the job
announcement that he’s now filling, it doesn’t say that. And his ac-
tions don’t reflect that.

Mr. Forp. Do you have a copy of that?

Ms. StepHENS, His responsibilities are much more extensive. He
was employed through this job description.

Mr. Forp. Do you have a copy of the job description for the Di-
rector of Dependents’ Schools Policy?

Ms. STEPHENS. It's termed Director of Dependents’ Schooi Pro-
gram in the job description rather than policy.

I can furnish you a copy for the record if you like.

Mr. Forp. And do you have a job description for the Director of
the Department of Defense Dependents’ Schoois?

Ms. STEPHENS. Yes.

Mr. Forp. I'd like to have both of those for the record——

Ms. StepHENS. All right.

Mr. Forp [continuing]. If you would give them to us.

And, without objection, they will be placed in the record at this
point.

[The information referred to follows:}
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1. HATURE AND PURPOSE OF WORK
A.  INTRODUCTION:

1.  This position reports to the Bepav,‘kziig!tnt Secretary of
jonnet—and ementh) e
T 7 M“t‘&')

Defense (Hititory-Pers force Manag
A 7 .
The ASD(-NR%EEi is the principal staff ad:/isor and assistant to the Secretary

of Defense for DoD civilian and military requirements, policy, and planning;
reserve affairs; logistics; and install io?s management. To fulfill his
functional responsibilities, the ASO{ develops policies, conducts
analyses, provides advice, makes recommendat fons, and issues guidance on
Defense plans and programs; participates in DoD planning, programming, and
budgeting ctivities; and initiates programs, actions, and taskings to
ensure adherence to DoD policies and national security objectives.

£rmyr)

The Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense ( ree
Hanagement). Is 2 principal staff advisor and assistant to the ASO(MRALL) and
is responsible for providing the leadership, direction and manxgement
control of the DoD Military Personnel Program, including assocrated support
programs such as those relating to the Dependents Schools. The incumbent of
this position serves as the Director, Degartment of Defense Dependents
Schools. In support of the BASO{MPA&FMYE Ithe Director §s responsible for
planning, formulating, developing, and execyting the policies and programs
of the Secretary of Defense and the ASD 7790 211 funct fonal areas
assigned in consnnance with the Administration's goals aud objectives. This
includes recommendat fons concerning major political issues, finvolement n
advocat ing the policies and programs o¢ the Secretary of Defense, and the
Administration and full support of their controversial asnects.

2. This position is located in the Dffice of the Department of
Defense Dependents Schools (DODDS). Responsibilities and authorities of the
Department of Defense Dependen’s Schools are set forth in DoD Directive
1342.6, August 26, 1976. The DODDS is established as an Dffic. of the
Secretary of Defense field activity under the policy guidance of the
Assistant Secretary of Defense {Manpowery—Reserve-Affatrs—andtogistics) { { M )

3. The dependents schools’ system is comprised of approximately
280 schools, located in 27 different countries, with an enrollment of
approximately 150,000 students, and employing approx imately 11,000 teachers,
administrators, and support personnel. In addition, DDDOS provides for the
education of minor dependent children of military personnel stationed
anywhere 1n the world where American school foci)ities are unavailable (such
as Moscow, Cape Town, Cairo, New Dehli, etc.) through contract and/or
tuition aid programs. The incumbent of this position serves as the
Directer, 00DOS.

8. BACKGROUND: This position requires the application of profes-
s10nal knowTedge of the theories, principles, and techniques of education in
such areas as instruction, guidance counseling, and educatic. sdministra-
tion. These knowledges provide an enabling background in support of the
position’s primary reason-for-being, which is to link the Administration’s
educat fonal philosophies, economic priorities, and other key welfare and
service programs to the DDODS program and policy development process. In

O
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V1. PERSONAL WORK CONTACTS

Contacts extend throughout 211 levels

of the Department of Defense,
orher Executive Depdrtments angd Agenc fes, a

nd the Congress.

o
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this respect, the Director acts as an informed man ager/fac flitator
exercising high level Contacts nd fina) commitment author ity to support
the implementation of the Administration’s education program. Headstart,
the Second Langudge Program, and ethnic studfes exemplified past Admin‘s-
trations® major programmatic responses to educational philasophies ot their
day. Current thinking regarding the need to develop fundanental learning
skills, as well as this Adainistration’s desire to support fts commitment to
the A1l Volunteer Force by providing education in a maner Xceptabdle %0
parents, will have a significant influence on the future programs of the
DODNS. The Director's penultimate purpuse fis, therefore, to translate
current Acainistration philosophy into managerial educat fon programs and
policies.

C. OUTiES

1. The Director, DODDS, is responsible for establishing policies
and procedures, for the organization, operat fon, admwnfstration, and
logist ical support of the dependents schools® system of the Department of
Defense-

2. Through consultation with educators, major school ministra-
tors, and the Dependents Schools Accreditatton Association, determines the
content and scope of the dependents schools® program cons istent with the
re-traints of budgetary limitations, and the avaflability of facilities and
equipment. Such programs are Jesigned to meet or ex’ eecd the quality,
content, and character of school systems of equal - ze anywhere in the
United States.

3. Determnes th2 short- and long-range objectves and goals of
the program, and establishes twmetables, check and evaluation pownts to
determine progress and accompl ishments. Periodically conducts comprehensive
evaluations of the system to determine comoliance by subordwnate echelons,
ident1fy problem areas, and test the valigity of policies and procedures.
Based upon the findings of the evaluation, adjusts or redefines object wves
and goals, policies and/or procedures as necessary, or takes otaer
manager1al action to correct the probYem. Mawntaiwns an awireness of the
changing woplg s ituation, troop commitments, etc., in order to provide
advice for fstant Secretary of Defense (MRALL) ot the fmpaxt of foreign
policy decisions and commitments upon the dependents schools' program.

4. Organizes the resources of DODDS into the most economical and
product fve structure possible consistent with the missfon requirements and
budget 1imitations. Uti1izing good manager fal and pos it fon managecent
pranciples, Organizes the system into staff and operational elements such as
regions, districts, Complexes, etc., as necessary to direct the effect ive
accomplishment of assigned mission with 2 respons fve organizat ion.

5. Represents the Do with segments of the Legislat ive, Execu-
tiwve, and Judicial Branches of the Federal Government on educational
matters. This inclufes maintaining 1iafson in direct (often day-to-day)
relationships with high level officials of the Offfce of Personnel
Management, Merit Systems Prot.ct fon Board, Offi-e of Management and dudget,
Office of the Comptrotler General, Post Office and Civil Service Committee,
as well as other conmittees of Congress.

O
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. Increases the management emphasis and comment on and the
qual ity of planning for the application of new educational approaches and
developments arising from propos d legistation, social sciences research,
and the latest developments in our overseas commitments,

11, SCOPE AND EFFECT DF WORK

Tte work involves plannwng, developing, and directing a worldwide
cducat ional system, kindergarten through grade 12, for the education of
approx imately 150,006 dependent children of military personnel, and civilian
employees of the Department of Defense stationed overseas. The wncumbent s
responsible vur providing a quality education equal or better to that
availadble in major urban school jurisdictions throughout the United States.
The quality of education provided by the DODDS system will have an impact
upon the Tives of all the students enrolled wn the system.

111. SUPERVISION RECEIVED

Duties are performed under the broad policy guidance of the
DASD{MPLFM) .

Iv.  SUPERVISIDN EXERCISED

Supervises the operation of the Dependents Schools system through three
regional directors, i the Atiantic, Pacitic, and European Regions, and &
headquarters staff consisting of approxmately 37 professional, administra-
tive, and support personnel. Iasures a continuing affirmative application
of DSD-w.de policy concerning equal employment opportunity. Assures that
personnel management within subordinate organizations 1s accomp) ished
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age or nati0ndl origwn. Is
responsable for keeping abreast of developments, policy, 1ssuances, etc., wn
the EEQ freld

V.  KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES REQUIRED

Effect wely performing duties a.signed requires: a thorough knowledge
of Administration nolicies and goals in all areas upon which MRASL
responsibilities touch, with particular emphasis in areas that are the
specafic responsibilities of the DODDS. This means the Director must be
able to evaluate and, as necessary, modify policy proposals generated by
00DD's regional directovs fit within the context of the Administration's
standing policies and broad awms. In this regard, the incumbent must be
capable of absorbing large amounts of highly esoter ic program nformat 10n
and relate 1t to service/sgency/component needs, the regulatory and
statutory policy base governing vducation management, and Administration
poticy. This 1s, of course, not simply an exercise in acquiring the salient
aspects of educational programs and {ssues but it also wnvolves gawning the
consensual validation of many of the parties noted under Duties.
Accerdingly a keen wntellect and the ability to express ideas persuasively
both orally and 1n w» g are required. The ability to successfully
negotiate DobD education policy positions 1s also required,

O
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DIRECTOR, DEPENDENTS SCHOOLS PROGRAM
INTRODUCTION

This position 1s located in ODASD (Family Support, Educatioil
and Safety;, OASD (Force Management & Personnel). The Deputy
Secretary of Defense DASD (FSE&S) 15 responsible for policy
formulation, program and budget review and ovarsight for all
natters regarding cognizant programs.

The incumbent of this pos:tion serves as the Director,
Dependentc Schools Programs (DSP), responsible for all activities
involved 1in the planning, direction, operation, control, and
coordination required 1n the administration of all dependents'
schools prograns.

HAJOR DUTIES

The 1i1ncumbent 15 responsiblc for assisting the Deputy
Assistant Secretary of Defense (FSE&S) 1in establishing policies
governing the management of dependents® schools progranms.
Performs review and analysis of policies and 1ssues relating to
the dependents® schools programs and prepares reports on the
implementaticn and performance of DoD operated schools.

Per forms comprehensive studies of system-wide educational
prograns which have unique resource requirements or special
statutory mandates. Provides oversight for family member support
programs and tuition assistance programs.

Serves as a principal staff member for program and budget
revie~. Ravlews and analyzes proposed legislation concerning the
dependents' schools prograns and prepares position papers as
required.

Prepares reports and studies with narrative text and
appropriate tables, charts, and other supporting material to
justify recommendations, prove conclusions, and document
alternatives. These reports and studies must be developed with
suificient detail and support to serve as the praimary DoD
statenent and position on the subject being studied.

Prepares Congressional testimony on matters of dependents'
schools prograns. Presents DoD position to the DoD Inspector
General and General Accounting Office 1n response to 1ssues
concerning dependents' education. Prepares Congressional reports
on dependents' schools programs as requested by the Congress

Performs other duties as assigned.

RIC
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FACTORS:

FACTOR 1, KNOWLEDGE REQUIRED BY THE POSITION

The 1incumbent must have extensive knowledge of the
principles involved 1n ranagement, supervision and operation of a
large, widely dispersed s<hool system. He must also have
substantial knowledge about educational pPrograms commonly found
in public schools in the United States and unique educational
programs which would be suitable for the vverseas environments;
basic understanding of budgeting, logistical and personnel
principles associated with the operation of a large organization,
and vast knowledge of the theories and practices related to
interpersona’ r. lationships and leadership techniques. R

FACTOR 2, JSUPERVISORY CONTROL

Dutie, are performed under the general guidance of the
Deputy Asfistant Sec.etary of Defense {(FSE&S).

FACTOR 3, GUIDELINES

Guidel nes consist of broad Policy statements and program
objectives established by the Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Defense (ESE&S), law, and regulation. Guidance 1s characterized
as general 1in nature and nonspecific. Although not directly
applicable, the incurmhent will also rely upon a wide range of
administrative support program policies and procedures applicable
to DoD activities. The incunbent must extensively interpret and
adopt the limited guidance which applies to areas of assigned
responsibility.

FACTOR 4, COMPLEXITY

The work requires application of advanced knowledge adbout
public school administration, suPervision and operation as these
concepts relate to the Federal sector. Duties are greatly
complicated by the organizationally separate and geographically
dispersed nature of the dependents’ schools operations and of the
large number of other agencies and 1nstitutions whiCh must be
involved 1n the successful operation of DoD-operated schools.

FACTOR 5, SCOPE AND EFFECT OF WORK

The duties and responsibilities of this position cover the
entire range of dependents' schools programs.

O
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FACTOR 6., PERSONAL CONTACTS

Frequently works with top DoD military and civilian leaders
with responsibility in training and education management, with
key Congressiosnal personnel, and with high level officials of
such agencies as the Office of Management and Budget and the
General Accounting Office,

FACTOR 7, PURPOSE OF CONTACTS

Contacts are made as a representative of the OSD and are for
the purpose of obtaining information, resolving probleas and
developing understanding among people who have conflicting and/or
different goals and objectives. Often contacts are made for the
purpose of developing, monitoring, defending or Justifying OSD
Policy and 1ssue positions with regard to complex and
controversial 1issues,

FACTOR 8, PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Work 1s primarily sedentary. Requires carrying personal
luggage, light books, training materials, and papers to and from
conferences and meetings in different Government buildings and
activities and to locations outside the United States.

FACTOR 9, WORK ENVIRONMENT

Work 1s usually performed 1in offices and conference roons,
Travel by car, rail, bus, and military or commercial aircraft to
a variety of stateside and overseas locations for meetings,
ttaining, and conference is required. Exposure to a variety of
environnental conditions typical of the area 1n which traveling,
to include poscible acts of terrorism, 1s 1nvolved 1n the work of
the position
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Mr. Forp. The job description that I have before me says that the
incumbent is responsible for assisting the Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary of Defense in establishing policies governing the management
of dependents’ schools programs.

Ms. STePHENS. Is that for the Director of DODDS or the Director
of Dependents’ Schools Program.

Mr. Forp. The Director of Dependent Schools Programs.

Performs comprehensive studies of systemwide educational pro-
grams, which have unique resource requirements or special statu-
tory mandates.

That sounds as if it would include the Director of the Depart-
ment of Defense Dpendents’ Schools, doesnr’t it?

Ms. STePHENS. Yes, it does.

I can furnish you a copy of this. It says this position is located in
office of ODASD, Family Support, Education, and Safety, a Deputy
Assistant Secretary of Defense.

Mr. Forp. Now, did the Counsel for the Defense Department spe-
cifically address that in rendering an opinion that the reorganiza-
tion was consistent with tne statute?

Ms. StepHENS. The General Counsel of Department of Defense
stated that the Deputy Assistant Secretary could serve, and I be-
lieve the words were, in the shoes of the Assistant Secretary, or
other designated persons could. That’s not the exact quote, but I
can furnish you with it.

Mr. Forp. Counsel says in this opinion of June 20, 1965, DODDS
is an element of the Department of Defense. DODDS, therefore, is
}mder the authority, direction, and control of the Secretary of De-
ense.

The Secretary has the right to delegate these powers to another
official of the Department. The Secretary has done so with respect
to DODDS.

The charter of the Assistant Secretary of Defense for Force Man-
agement and Personnel confers all the Secretary’s authority to
manage DODDS on the Assistant Secretary.

DOD Directive 5124.

This includes but is not limited to the establishment of educator
positions.

Then he goes on to say the Secretary has expressly empowered
the Assistant Secretary to redelegate authority, diraction, and con-
trol over DODDS.

I understand that acting on the Assistant Secretary’s recommen-
dation the Secretary has appointed Mrs. Barbara Pope as the
Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense, I'amily Support, Education,
and Safety, and has given her authority, direction, and authority
over DODDS, subject to guidance from: the Secretary and the As-
sistant Secretary.

Mrs. Pope, therefore, stands in the shoes of the Secretary and
the Assistant Secretary in directing the operations of and establish-
ing policy for DODDS.

Ms. Stepuens. That’s a memorandum written by the general
counsel.

Mr. Forp. They're taking a position that this does meet the re-
quirement of the statute because the Assistant Secretary has re-
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delegated his authority over DODDS to her, so that she stands as
an Assistant Secretary with respect to DODDS.

Ms. StepHENS. That’s their interpretation.

Mr. Forp. But that leaves us with the additional question of
whether DODDS reports directly to Mrs. Pope’s position, wearing
the shoes of the Assistant Secretary, although she’s classified as a
Deputy Assistant.

The counsel is saying ithat for the purpose of DODDS administra-
tion she is an Asgistant Secretary.

Ms. StepHENS. DODDS reports to the Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary.

I have a memorandum from Cox that states that we will report
to the Deputy Assistant Secretary in my file.

I could furnigh it for the record.

Mr. Forp. Well, I don’t know whether I can quibble with the
counsel for the Defense Department on the power of a Secretary to
delegate their authority.

But I don’t have any doubt in my mind that we knew what we
were saying when we said that we wanted DODDS reporting to an
Assistant Secretary.

I've just gone through something like this with the Department
of Education, where I set up a Migrant Education Office. And they
look at it and say, well, the chart would look better this way, so
obviously Congress didn’t mean it.

So, I relegislated it again last year. Now, for 3 years we tried to
get the administration to understand that Congress meant what it
said, that there was going to be a Migrant Office and where it was
going to be, and it wasn’t going to be buried under something else.

Now, that’s contemporaneous with the action we were taking in
1978. We meant what we said when we crested the Director, as a
statutory position within the Department. Now, the Secretary can
do all the delegating he wants, Il))uf; he can’t abolish a statutorily
created position.

And that position was specified to be reporting directly to some-
body at the Assistant Secretary level. That was so the department
wouldn’t redelegate authority above DODDS to so many people
that DODDS ended up in the back room some place along with
people operating the PX’s.

It was intended to elevate this office to a visible place, where the
Director, being a professional educator, could impact on major
policy decisions thet would directly affect the quality of the educa-
tional program, including budget.

And, so, I think, we’re going to have to pursue a liitle further
with the Department of Defense what they believe to be the ead
result of this convoluted reasoning.

[ve served in two branches of the military, and I understand
how readily you can develop a military logic for things you want to
do. And, as a former member of the Judge Advocate gorps of the
Air Force, this sort of reasoning looks familiar to me. I guess I
have written memos like this myself.

They tell you how they want it to come out, and then you write
it that way.

But we’¥l have to have further discussions with somebody over
there to see what their explanation is for why DODDS is now going
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through a Deputy Assistant instead of an Assistant, which clearly,
unless I misunderstand the tradition of the hierarchy in the Gov-
ernment, denigrates the office of the Director, with or without
regard to the incumbent in that office, that's a matter of concern
to us.

Now, without any judgment with respect to whether the incum-
bent Director is a good Director, a great Director, or not a great
Director, this committee’s concern is the position of Director, and
where that is, in the visible hierarchy of the Defense Department.

We're even more concerned, since we made the decision with
that in mind, that the DODD Schools would stay with Defense and
not go to Education.

It may well be that some of us will change our mind again if
we're convinced that Defense is hellbent to bury DODDS far
enough down the line so that only the most curious committee will
be able to find them again in the future.

We spent a number of years trying to get them out of the back
room and up front. We really sort of treated these kids, for many
years, the way handicapped kids were treated in our school system.
If you can put them some place where you don’t see them, they
don’t bother anybody. And that’s not what is intended here.

And I want to thank you for your cooperation and for your frank
discussion with the committee today. And I hope it doesn’t get you
in great difficulty.

I would remind you and anybody else who's reporting back to the
Department that there are rules that cover the appearance of a
witness before any duly constituted committee of the House. And
any action, directly or indirectly, that results, that would be in the
nature of criticism or intimidation, because of the witness’ ccopera-
tion with the committee would be regarded as an act of high con-
tempt by this committee and his chairman.

I don’t know that that caveat is necessary, but somehow your
previous testimony and your variation from the testimony that was
cleared indicates that there might be somebody without a lot of ex-
perience with the Congress who might be critical of that.

Ms. StepHENS. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Forp. Thank you very much.

> Forp. Now, we have a panel with gack Rollins, president of
the Overseas Education Association; and Ernest Lehmann, execu-
tive director of the Overseas Federation of Teachers.

All right. 'm informed that we're being evicted.

Without ohjection, the prepared statements of both gentlemen
will be placed in the record.

This room has been committed for a joint House-Senate confer-
ence that’s due to start pretty soon. So, they’ll be throwing us out
very shortly.

I'd ask both of you to comment with respect to your testimony or
anything you’ve heard this morning that might provoke you to add
something.

First, Jack Rollins.
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STATEMENT OF JACK ROLLINS, PRESIDENT, OVERSEAS
EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Mr. Rornins. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

With respect to the time, I will make my testimony brief.

I am Jack Rollins, president of the Qverseas Education Associa-
tion, a stete sffiliate of the National Education Association.

The Overseas Education Association represents approximately
8,000 teachers in the Department of Defense Dependents’ Schools
and, in addition, we also represent and assist Six Six school teach-
ers in the continental United States and Puerto Rico, as well as the
Bureau of Indian Affairs teachers.

Before I begin my presentation, I want to thank Chairman Haw-
kins for honoring the Overseas Education Association’s request to
hold this hearing and to you, Chairman Ford, for the time outside
of this hearing that you personally have spent with me and our
Counsel, Ron Austin, on matters concerning the DCDDS system.

In addition, I must comment most favorably on the time and
effort spent by the staffs of both this commitee and the Post Office
and Civil Service Committee on our educational issues.

When we speak of reorganization of DODDS, we, as you are
av}vlarela, are observing the never ending p ~cess of reinventing the
wheel.

We firmly oppose any movement to the pre-1975 situation of
military controf)of schools.

We have gone from military control { centralized civilian con-
trol in Alexandria, but continue to have the never ending creation
of new regions and realignments of old regions worldwide.

It appears the only stable area worldwide has been the Pacific
region.

During the tenure of Assistant Secretary of Defense Korb, we
were told to expect more authority vesied in the chief school ad-
ministrators, now also known as school supe.intendents, with a
gradual demise of the size of the regional offices and an end to the
duplication of functions found in each region.

Those duplicative regional functions were to be performed by the
Office of Dependemts’ Schools in Alexandria for the entire school
system, and thus eliminate the same process in each region.

There was even consideration that the payment of teachers
would be made from a central point in the Office of Dependents’
Schools.

Now, the current planning seems to be a trend toward super re-
gions, with only the general policy making being performed by the
Office of Dependents” Sckools, and virtually all other policy making
residing with the various regions.

We have even read with concern a prgposal that certain respon-
sibilities in the running of the DODDS system be given to the
Department of the Army.

We strongly support a universal school system totally directed by
a civilian Office of Dependents’ Schools.

We believe that the current practice of duplication in each of the
five DODDS regions is a wasteful use of manpower and resources
and causes undue friction in the decision making process both as to
personnel practices and policies and student issues.

‘ 65

IToxt Provided by ERI



62

With rare zxceptions dictated by local conditions, personnel prac-
tices and school standards and their interpretation should be uni-
form in a%%ication worldwide.

Today, DODDS regions tend to be a law unto themselves.

While we favor retaining a regional director with authority to
act as liaison with the military community at the highest regional
level, we believe the focus and exercise of authority should be with
the Director of the Office of Dependents’ Schools and the ODS stafi’
in order to avoid duplication of effort and variations of policy.

We believe universal application of policies and practices to be in
the best interest of the school system as a whole.

As for regional alignment, which has been discussed, e would
recommend the following: a Pacific region, as presently aligned; an
Atlantic region to include all schools in the British Isles, Iceland,
Newfoundland, Bermuda, Cuba, Antig 1, and Panama; and a Euro-
pean region encompassing Germany { e BENENOR countries, and
the Mediterranean region.

OEA believes that in any reexamination of the structure of
DODDS the functions of administrators at the school level and
above should be carefully reviewed. For example, the emergency of
supervising principals, coordinating principels, and educational
program managers at the school level and subject matter coordina-
tors and other specialists at the regional and chief school admiinis-
trator level is certainly a questionable use of manpower.

Our focus must be on the student and the teacher. All other con-
cerns are secondary.

When we have a system that virtually has one other employee
for every classroom teacher, we know we have a problem. as you
can see In the attachment provided.

To summarize, we favor a centralized system, as envisioned by
the Defense Dependents Education Act of 1978, where the Director
of DODDS through and with his or her staff provides uniform goals
in curricula, text books, and standards and, as far as possible, uni-
form conditions of employment.

In spite of the current political climate, we have established a
positive working relationship with the staff of the Department of
Defense Dependents’ Schools in Alexandria. And I have been most
impressed with out meeting with Assistant Secretary Pope. She
listed to what we had to saf'.

Time, of course, will tell if a positive working relationship may
be estoblished, but I am encouraged by the beginnings.

Now, in respect to the time, sir, I would just like to draw atten-
tion to the three areas of concern added to my testimony, which I
will not speak to ai this moment, but the record will speak to it.

We do have concerns with budget cuts and the budget process
itself, the amount of moneys appropriated for DODDS, which we
feel, on a per capita basis for each student, is definitely underfund-
ed. And we highly request that this Congress look at those moneys
and do whatever it is in their power to raise the amount of moneys
for the DODDS system.

And last, but not ieast, we do drew attention to H.R. 43, which
Congresswoman Mary Rose Oakar introduced on our behalf. And
there have been hearings held, and there have been meetings, and
we have consulted with proper staff on it.

ERIC . 1
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We call on this Congress to support passage of that legislation
before the end of the current Congress.

Thank you, sir, for the opportunity to testify, and I am open for
questions.

Mr. Forp. Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Jack Rollins follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Jack ROLUINS, PRESIDENT OF THE OVERSEAS EDUCATION

ASSOCIATION

with rare exceptions dictated by local conditions, personnel
practices and school standards and rheir interpretation
should be uni{orm 1n application worldwide.

Today DODDS regions tend to be a law unto thenselves. While
we favor retaining a regional director with authority to act
as liaison with the military community at the highest
regional level, we believe the focas and exercise of
authority should be with the Director of the Office of
Dependents Schools and the ODS staff in order to avold
duplication of effort and variations of policy. We believe
universal application of policles and practices to be 1n the
best interest of the system as a whole.

As for regional alignment which has been much discussed, we
would recommend the following: & Pacific region as
presently aligned, an Atlantic reglon to inc%ude 8ll schools
:n the British Isles, lceland, Newfoundland, Bermuda, Cuba,
Antigua, and Panama; and a European region encompassing
Germany, the BENENOR countries, and the Mediterrancan
Region.

OEA believes that in any rcexamination of the structuxe of
pODDS, the functions of administrators at the school level
and above school level personnel should be carefully
reviesed. For exaople, the emergence of “'gsupervising
principals”, "coordinating principals” and “educationsl
program managers” at the school level and "subject matter
coorcinators” and other specialists at the Regional and (ua
levels is certainly a questionable use of Danpowex. Our
focus must be on the student and the teacher. All cther
concerns are secondary. When we have 2 system that
virtually has one other employee for every classroonm
teachex, we know we have a probler | (See Attachment 1.)

To summarize, we favor a centralized systex as envisioned by
the Defense Dependence Education Act of 1978 (20 V.S.C. 921
et. seq.) where the Director of DODDS, through and with his
or her staff, provides uniform goals in curricula, text
books and standards and, as far as possible, uniform
conditions of employment.

In spite of the current political climate, we have
established a positive working relationship with the staff
of the Department of Defense Dependents Schocls 1n
Alexandria, and 1 have been most impressed with our meeting
with Assistant Secretary Pope. She listened CO shat we had
to say. Time, of course, wisl tell if a positive working
relationship may be established, but I am encouraged by the
beginnings.

In addition to the reorganization of pODDS, there are three
other arew.s of concern to us that need the attentlon of the
Congress.

BUDGET CUTS

This f1iscal yeaxr the DODDS budget was cut 36 m1llion dollars
as a result of congressional actlon &s 1mplemented b{ the
Department of Defense ano 2 fu.ther /6,8 nillicn dollars as
a result of the Gramm-Rudman-Hollings Act. These cuts were
levied well after the first half of the school Year and had
a s. .ous effect on the system and on teacher morale. We
ask your support of our efforts with the Defense
Appropriations Committee to exempt the DODDS budget from
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cuts after the budget is approved. We al:o ssk your s\pport
in our efforts to ~stablish a separate line itex for the
DODDS budget and to estadlisn o ti-year funding to align
with the school year.

THE BUDGET

There are more than 270 DODDS schools locsted in il
countries with approximatel{ 155,000 students. DODDS is the
largest United States schoo system in geographical
dipensions and one of the ten largest in enrollment.
Because of its size and locations, it ig v.derstandable that
these are unique costs related to DODDE that U.S. school
syscens do not have, such as oversear allowancas for
employees, host nation programs, and the trangportstion
costs of enployees. These uniaue cotts need o be
considered separately from the monies idanticied for student
programs. In fiscal year 1985, DODDS received a budge
allocation of $3,402 for each student, which included t «
unique costs associated with the DODDS system. In order to
show a true comparison to other school systems in the United
States, these anique costs pust be deducted. The true per
student costa for fiscal year 1985 was $3,122 which was
below the nationsl nor.. " (See Attachment 2.) In £fiscal
year 1986, DODDS requested a budgetr allocation of $3,818 for
each student; agsan this amount included unique costs.
Without the unique costs the true allocation would be $3,444
er student which was below the national norm. After the
gudge: cuts occurred for fiscal year 1986, the true
allocation for each student was $2,908. This allocation
should be an embarrassment to the federal government becau
the dependent children of our military forces are not
receiving a comparable education to other United States
school systems. Again we would ask your support of our
efforts to raise the amount of per student expenditires.

HR 43

At our request, Congresswoman Mary Rose Oakar introduced HR
43, a Bill written by the office of the Overseas Education
Association. Hearings have been held and after a series of
meetin§a and consultations, we now have a Bill with no, or
wininsl, costs attached to it. Since there are many aspects
of this Bill that are truly beneficial to the recruitment
and retention of highly qualified teachers, we urge your
support for the

passage of HR 43 before the end of the current congress.

Agein, I want to thank you lor your time in having us
testify before you today.
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Mr. Forp. Mr. Lehmann.

STATEMENT OF ERNEST LEHMANN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
OVERSEAS FEDERATION OF TEACHERS

Mr. LEHMANN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

It’s a pleasure to come here to speak to you today.

I'm Ernest Lehrann. I'm the European director of the Overseas
Federation of Teachers. And we represent a number of teachers
overseas.

I'm going to amplify on my testimony a bit and use, basically,
two themes. One is the incongruous between the espoused theory
and the theory in practice. And the second one is that too often we
get solutions without really identifying what the problem is.

The first of that is structure. We've heard a lot of testimony
about what the structure is. And the espoused theory basically is
clean, simple lines of authority.

We see, today, from thz testimony of Dr. Stephens and Ms. Pope
that this really isn’t true. We really don’t know what the lines of
authority are.

We do know, and we witnessed it this year, how one section
countermands another. A good example of that is the scheol year
calendar.

We do knov; that | sre is an office ot chief school administrator
between the regional director and the school principals, but we
don’t know ‘what they do.

I tell thera it’s the best jok in the whole progrem. They have no
aulthority and they have no responsibility, but they do get a good
salary.

We have school level administrators, up to four per school. And
we don’t kncw why there is that many.

We alsc have an enormous amount of duplication at managerial
levels. Special education has coordinators on fcur different levels—
Washington, region, CSA, and the school level. For what reason,
we’re not—we’re raally not certain.

Computer coordinators, exactly the same thing. Iour different
lev.ls, coordinators on each of those levels, and no reeson for it.

The other thing we hear about is change. The espoused theory,
that there’s a nonnal rationale, gsing appropriate techniques, to
bring about change. And change is necessary. We have a society
that’s progressing w.th technology.

However, we find that in practice that change comes about by
whim, by dictate. A geod example of ..at is the length of the school
year. It's been extended a number of days, well beyond what'’s hap-
pening in the United States.

We've asked why this has been done, what’s the educational ra-
tionale for this. We've never gotten any adequate reason for that.

The seven period day is another example, where every school
was, at one point, every high £-hool, secondary school, at one point,
was dictated to that we would have seven nstructional periods.

We asked, well, where does this :ome from? I¢ there a study that
has been developed? Is there any research that’s been done on this?
And we’ve never received any. Nor has it been piloted.

Q
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We would—we could say, well, fine, let’s pilot this thing; let’s try
it out; let’s look at it for awhile and see, and analyze it, and come
up with some evaluation of this. That’s never been done. It'’s just
beenddictated, and that’s the way it is, I think that’s a good idea,
let’s do it.

Testing Erogram is another thing. There’s a standardized testing
program that was in effect in DCDDS. This was planned and was,
in fact, carried out so that it would be twice a year, at the begin-
nin% of the school year and the end of the schonl ear. And they
could then judge what the differences were, and the results, and
why they had differences, and so on.

Now, that’s been cut back for no reason so that it occurs only
once a year and in not as many grades as it did Sefore.

Communications is another area. The espoused theory is that
there are open lines of communication ready to listen.

The practice is that we have found that in order to have DODDS
listen to us at ang level we have to iitigate, grievances, arbitra-
tions, lawsuits, and go to Congress.

The length of the school year is a good example of that.

The advisory council for dependents’ education, that was brought
up before. We don’t know where it stands. One manager says that
it's another manager’s responsibility. And in the meanwhile that
communication line is lost.

Morale is another area we’re concerned about. The espoused
theory is that they want high morale. In practice, it develops that
there is really no recognition for a staffs’ professionalism.

The best examples would be decisionmaking. There, they’re im-
posed. There’s not ownership. There’s no consensus decisionmaking
or very, very little of that.
hAr‘;of;her example is the transfer program. What happened to
that?

We were told we have this wonderful new transfer program this
year. Everybody is going to have a chance to get transferred. The
next thing we knew it’s completely wiped out to the point that we
had tcachers crying, saying that I went to the Azores with a prom-
ise from DODDS saying that they would take care of me because
this is really a ha' ‘ship area. And if you've been to the Azores you
know that it’s a hardship area. And the next thing they know, it
was completely -viped out and with no hope.

We hear also that ‘hey’re concerned about the professionalisia,
yet teachers still are not guaranteed a duty fres: time to eat lunch.

I thirk it’s the only group of people in this room that can’t say to
themselves i now have this time where I can go eat lunch ana not
worry about anything else.

Their cavalier way of establishing the length of the school year,
the length of the school day, all point to the fact that they're really
not concerned with employee morale.

For improvement, OFT recommends the following. First of all,
that we be certain that the person who runs DODDS would be a
career educational administrator with substantial experience in
running a large school system and a complicated school system.

Second, we also believe that if we're going to be effective we
should put the headquarters where the troops are, the headquar-
ters where the students are, where the schools are, and move them
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out of Alesandria where they have a buffer of about 4,000 miles of
ocean between making policy and having it realized.

Third, we also think that in streamlining the—one part in
streamlining—administrative e‘ructure would be to merge the
Mediterranean region with the Atlantic region.

And, fourth, we believe that communications should be opened
much more than they are currently. And I think that a lot of the
problems that we heard today would be reduced if people started
listening to the teachers more.

I want to thank you very much for the opportunity to present
this testimony here, and I em open to questions.

[Prepared statement of Ernest Lehmann follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ERNEST LEHMANN, EUROPEAN DIRECTOR, OVERSEAS FEDERA-

E

TION OF TEACHERS, AMRRprN FEDERATION o TeACH 38, AFL-CIO ON DEpARTMENT
oF DErENSE DEPENDENTS' SCHOOLS—SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY
AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

Mr. Chairman and Meabers 2£ the Subcommittee: I am Ernest Lehmann,

European Director of the Overseas Federation of Teachers, affiliated
with the American Federation of Teachers. I hav: been a teacher in
DODDS for 26 years and duriang this time have taught science, mnathe-
uatics and elementary school in a number of overscas locations. on
behalf of the OFT-AFT, we welcome the o rtenity to make a presenta-
ti’a  to the Subcommittee on Elementary, Secondary and Vocational

Educational.

Whit is going on in the Department of Defense Dependent Schools? We
hava & solution but what is the problem?

L, Structural changes i{n DoD and DoDDS.

Almoat totas confusion reigns overseas about the structural nakeup of
the chain of coumand in DODDS and its link-up with the Department of
Defense. We know that the principal is in chage of the school and
his/her ¥ole {a well defined. We don”t know wlat the responsibili res
are of the chief school administrators who occupy a managerial posi-
tion Dbetween the principal and the regional director; a aolution
without the problem defined. We know what a regional director 1{s
suppoaed to do but frequently he i{s pre-empted by the director of
DODDS. Examples of the pre-exemption are tranafers, school year
calandar, seven period day. We uynderstand what the director of DODLS
ahould be doing and who she thould report to but now we have an

additional 1link o the chain between the Assistant Secretary of

O
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Defenee and thia poaition is known as the Deputy Assistant secretary
(fanily support, education and safoty). We don”“t know whet this
position“s responsibilities are except that the incuambeat has estab-
Llished a School Policy Group which it seems monitors the DoDDS dir-
ectora &ctions; and at times counters her action or at other timea
initiates actioans. Does the strict construction of Section 1403 of
the Statute (P.L. 95-561) support the establishement of this new liak?
Probably not but {f this will make order ott of the chaos and poor
deciaions that are presert now we will support fit,.

Teachears and ®managera arve confused about the fuzzy managerial
lines which now exists.

Exanple: We have scen the Torrejon (Madrid) Spain High School
Coraitory close and open again at least four times within a four month
seriod this school years Example; We have seen a August 21 starting
date for the school year calendsr, changed to a September 14 starting
date and finally a September 4 starting date. We have been given
various reasons for this such as Gramm-Rudman cuts. The truth is that
these actions are not cuts because the scho year is the same length
with the same nunber of students teachera and adninistrators., To what

problem do we owe this solution?

2. How is the present DODDS structure working?

As presently constituted, the DODDS managerial «tructr re is not
working.

It is not working because of great geographical distance between
the DODDS headquarters and the staff and function its supervises, It
{s not functicning because of enormous duplication of servicea and

excessive wnanagerial manpower. It is not working because there is a
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basic lack of trust between and among ihe managerial levels and be-
tween managers and the workforce. It 13 not working because the
communicationa aystems have failed and the workforce is raquired to
lit{gate or attempt to obtain legialation to correct deficiencies.
It {a not working becauae policiea are heing {mposed without rhyse or
reason. All of these policiea are aolutiona, oftan where no problen
existad. Ixamplea of these are:
1. The aeven parfod day--where was the major impetus for thia chauge?
from the direcctor of DODDS. No part of the achool prograa has been
declarad so0 deficleut as to require auch a zajor change. No atudy
conducted, no pilot program establiahed, no need aaseased. At beat it
was a vwvhia which the director of DODDS thought was a good {dea.
Interagtingly, no one elac shared thia thought
2. Abclition of the tranafer program - agai{n Gramz-Rudman waa called
the culprita but {n fact it wea DODDS. The outright cancr'lation of
the tranafer program for this year plungad eaployee morale to new
depths. Intercatingly, managers are being tranaferrad at governnent
expanae. Even more intereating {s what DODDS is saying to the work-
force. There still ia a tranafer program but only 41f the employee {is
willing to transfer at his or her ovwn exPense. Aa far as we can
deteraine there was no need to cu% the tranafer program completely.
The wor! force waa more than willing to accept a reduction. Teachers
who in good fafth took posftiona {n hardship areaa were/are being
heavily penalized unncessarily.

Other problema which need to be addreased are:
--Favoritiss in selection of applicants for governmenc aponsored
training which would qualify hin/her for promotions.

--Failura to notify anewly employed teachers of thefr rights.

Qo Y,

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



E

O

RIC /

74

eePallure to hire fully qualified depepdenta of ailitary peraonnel
--Failure to convert qualified dependents to tenured poaitiona
--Peduction of qualificationa for aubstitutea to two yasra of college
--Eatabliahment of & paater teacher prograz (in Panana) which {a
adminiatered in auch a way that no claasroom teacher can qualify for

the progranm.

3. What do the teachera reconmamend?

One, that DOD make the welfar« of the atudenta a very high pri-
ority without this ioaediate and on-going the educational
prograa will continue to eove from criaia to crisis aza we have Dbean.
Eatabliahing a deputy assiatant aecretary for education ia one way to
bagin. Along with thia establish and publicize the levels of raapon-
aibilitiea for each managerial level.

Two, make the poaitions of director of DODDS a career SES posi-
tion and have aomeone what has experience aad qualifications in mana-
ging a complex far flung achool aystem. Thia could be a senior execu-
tive service position with all the benefits and allowancea of living
overaeaa with a rank equivalent to a eilitary flag rank.

Three, amove the DODDS HQ in Alexandria, Virginia overaeaa. Be-
fore doing this aome major manpower surgery should be done. Assuning
that the deputy aaaistant aeccretary staff would be the DODDS interface
with the DOD hierarchy and Congress we could move DODDS HQ to Germany
where the bulk of the achoola are located and at the same time reduce
{ts stoff. Ita functions would be:

1. ataffing
2. flacal

3, standards (stsndardized testing, graduation
requirenents, accreditations)

G
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4. School year calendar

Rarely, {f ever, have we geen a major HQs so far removed from {ts
workforce and its function. DODDS HQ belongs in Europe where approxi-
mately 80% of fta workforce and schools are located.

Four, the number of regions slould be reduced to fair. This
world mean that a Gerrany, Mediterranean, Atlantic, Panazc-Island
achools and Pacific regions should be established. The regions func-
tions should be reduced but would finclude in major part

1. FPiscal !
2. staffing personnel (current functioas)
3. Program evaluation
4., Logistics
Five, the Chief Schoo. Administrator (CSA) positions should be

enhance¢ and include:

1. staffing at school level
2. curriculum

The curriculua coordinators should be assigned :o schools and have at
least 50% teaching respoasibility. Six, reduce duplication on the
various managerial levels. At the prescut we have managers at each of
the four levels for speclial education and for computer science. This
cou'd be reduced to two levels, the CSA and school levels. The system
should not need more than two levels of curriculun supervision.

Seven, wve recommend that all professional educator administrator
positions be converted from GS positions to PL 86-91 posi .ions. Nor-

mally the schools are not staffed in the suamer o1 duringg winter und

spring recess perioas. This should reduce the budget.

Eight, have the entire extra-curricular sporting program funded

through the military morale, welfare and recreation agencies. If this

1s not possible have a balance between financial support given to

acadenic and athletic activities,
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Nine, communication channels nust be opened. This can be accom-
plishes by:

1. Moving DODDS HQ to Europe

2. Enhancing the school advisory committees in school,
installations, region and national level.

The regional and na*ional committees should meet a
ainimum of four times a year.

3, Be favolved with PTA.

4. Utilize the labor mangement relations forum.

Encourage more consensus decision making. Use
the modern managerial model as well as
the normal chaiun of command type of communication.

s, Incidental communication which comes from being
in proximity with the workforce.

6. Use a proven managerial model before initiating change.
Identify the problem before making a change. Pilottng,
reviewing, evaluation assessment, change, termination or
adoption rather than pure whim should guide chaages.

How 1is the workforce effected by the current structure and the
policies which emenate from {t?
The morale i{s as low as {t has ever been. This is demonstrated
by:

*Teachers being disenfranchised when professional decisions are being
wade.

*Teachers have volced bitterness at the change in the transfer
prograam.

*Teachers in secondary schools are saying they never worked
as hsrd as they do ia DODDS while in the United Stated. Teachers with
more than 20 years are resigning.
*New teachers are putting {n one to two years and resigning.
®#Teachers are not even guaranteed a duty free time to ecat lunch.
There i1 much vork to do to faprove DODDS and make {t reach its

full potential. You have our cooperation, commitment and dedication

to making thess {mprovements happen.

opelu#2/aflcio
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Mr. Forp. If I understand, the one thing common to both of the
teachers organizations is the complaiat that I heard before about
the growth in administrative personnel and no crmparable growth
in professional teaching personnel. Is that right?

Mr. LEuMANN. Absolutely.

There’s layer after layer being auded, duplication after duplica-
tion, and to the point where one manager just says I'm not sure.
You saw this today. One manager says we don’t know what my re-
sponsibility is.

I think the perfect examPle in the Mediterranean region is the
CSA office. We've asked—I've asked two of the three there what
are your responsibilites. They have told me they’re not sure. What
are your authorities? They’re not sure.

And, yet, they occupy a managerial level, and they have staff,
and they expend money, but there’s very little done.

The same thing within the school level. We have schools with
three and four administrators where one or two would be suffi-
cient.

You know, we're not dealing with a work force that’s uneducat-
ed, that must be supervised from minute to minute or day to day.
We're dealing with a very professional, highly trained group, sup-
posedly capable of making decisions, detailed, complicated deci-
sions, on its own. Yet, the way the structure is set up, it looks like
you’re pretty much on an assembly line and having a master over
a slave every five or six slaves. And it is absolutely unnecessary as
far as I can see.

Mr. Roruins. If I may comment, sir.

Mr. Forp. Did you want to say something about it?

Mr. RoLuins. Based on the organizational structure that now
exists, I can testify that there is a need for the way it exists, but I
differ in how many personnel is involved at each structure.

Let me give you an example. Obviously, there is a need for
DODDS existence in Washington in order to deal with educational
issues worldwide with the proper people in the Department of De-
fense, and Congress, and other matters.

There’s a need for regional authority to deal with the respective
command level military, which they must deal with in logistical
support and otherwise. But I think they’re overstaffed in many re-
spects at that level.

There’s a need for the chief school administrator to deal with the
respective military commands for logistical support and otherwise
in certain areas. For example, obviously there’s a r.eed for them in
countries like Japan, and Korea, and the Philippines, because they
are unique, and they do have military cominands at that respective
levei, and they need that administrator to deal with them.

But I question the need for that structure and as the way it is
administered in Germany, for example.

There’s a greater need for the chief school administrator depend-
ing on the geographics. And, obviously, there’s a need for school
level administration, but I question the need for the 1..-mbers.

My point of view is strictly from the statistics that it’s analyzed,
that we are understaffed in respect to teaching positions, and there
is a question of how much staffing is needed above school level.
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But I have no questions as to the need for the organizational
structure.

Mr. Forp. Mr. Rollins, have you had an experience with the new
position we have heard described here today of a director between
the schools and the regional director?

Mr. Lehmann says that it’s a position that exists but has no pur-
pose.

Mr. RoLLINS. I'm sorry, sir. Which level are we talking about?

Mr. Forp. What is that?

Mr. LEnMANN. CSA.

Mr. RorLInS. Yeah. That’s the one I addressed just recently, just
in the last minute, about the need for them in certain geographical
areas. There is definitely a need for them on the areas like coun-
try-level administration, Japan and otherwise, Korea, and the Phil-
ippines, all of England, things of that nature. You need chief school
administrators in order to work with the military effectively at
that level with the logistical matters and other administrative mat-
ters.

We do not have a need for that level of administration per se
with educational matters. And, so, that’s why we questioned the
number of staff personnel that each level of administration has
when it comes to educational issues versus administrative issues.

Mr. Forp. I want to thank you both for your response and your
carefully prepared statements that we have in the record.

We invite you to communicate any additional thoughts you have
as a result of the testimony you have heard here today.

And I expect that we will be getting into this more deeply as we
find the time to devote to it. But we do appreciate your cooperation
with the committee at this point.

Thank you very much.

Mr. Roruins. Thank you.

Mr. LEamaNN. Thank you.

[Whereupon, at 1:05 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.’
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